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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The management of VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORP. is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years 
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework 
indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached 
therein, and submits the same to the stockholders. 

Sta. Ana Rivera & Co., CPAs, the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the 
financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its 
report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of 
such audit. 
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The Stockholders and Board of Directors 
VISAYAM SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION 
Unit 1403 Keppel Center, cor. Samar Loop & Cardinal Rosales Avenue 
Cebu Business Park, Cebu City 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of VlSAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE 
CORPORATION ("the Company"), which comprise the statements of financial position as at 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of 
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2017, and 2016, and its financial 
performance end its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Cade of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of 
Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financiai 
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether . , 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative-but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overse 
process. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs wilt always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Mitatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate* they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or emr, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

- Evaluate the approprhteness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 



Report on the Supplementary Information Required under Revenue Regulations 02-2014 
and 15-2010 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue 
Regulations 02-2014 and 15-2010 in Note 29 to the financial statements are presented for 
purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue, and are nat a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the management of VISAYAN 
SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

STA. ANA RIVERA i% CO. 
SEC Accreditation No. 0218-FR-2 until January 19,2020 (Group B) 
BOAlPRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0144 until December 31,2019 
IC Accreditation No. F-2015-007-R until April 23, 2018 
BSP Accredited (up to 2019 Audit Period) 
TIN 001 -075-090-000 

GJIdPW 
CHERYL R. BACHARO 
Partner 
CPA Reg. No. 54922 
TIN 105-072-747-000 
PTR-No. 145147f3, January 9,2018, Cebu City 
SEC Accreditation No. 1410-A R-I until September 5,2020 (Group C) 
BSP Accredited (up to 201 9 Audit Period) 
BIR Accreditation No. 13-001250-002-2016 until January 26, 2019 

Cebu City, Philippines 
April 3, 2018 



Exhibit A 

VlSAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
December 31,2017 and 2016 
(In Philippine Pesos) 

Note 2017 2016 

- ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 179,179,970 + 226,303,129 
lnsurancer receivables, net 6 138,249,283 . 167,082,538 
Other receivables 7 33,563,600 - 28,347,200 
Mongage loans receivable 8 118,209,081 , 16,083,333 
Current financial assets 

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 9 59,483,389 49,526,928 
Available fw sale financial assets 9 12,248,454 37,092,444 
Held to maturity flnanwM assefs 9 13,056,933 
Short-term financial assets b 21,248,290 21,009,076 

Other current assets I 0  1,678,688 1,709,138 
Total Current Assets 576,917,688 548,153,786 

Noncurrent Assets 
Property and equipment -net 
Noncumt financial assets 

Held to maturity financial assets 
Deferred tax assets 
Other assets 72 17,743,299 16,467,087 

Total Noncurrent Assets 
- -  - 225,600,646 189,897,050 

UABlLlTlES AN0 EQUITY 

Current Uablll#es 
Accounts payable and accrued em 
Due to reinsurers 
Clalms and lowes payable 15 . - 
Deposits 16 
Reserve for unearned ~rernlums 17 
Income tax payable 26 2,788,884 8,485,426 

Total C u m t  LbMliHes 540,866,982 324,651,929 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Accrued retirement obligation 
Deferred tax liabilities 26 4,883,893 2,216,563 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 20,346,045 16,159,032 
Totat Liabilities 361,003,027 340,810,961 

Equity 
Share capital - PI00 par value 19 300,000,000 250,000,000 
Additional paid in capltal 79 1.600 1,500 
Contingency surplus 79 28,720,600 
Deposits for future subsoriptbn 19 31,260,000 - x. 

Other comprehensive income 
Unrealized gain on AFS financial esset, net of tax 9 115,083 569,064 
Appraisal increase, net of tax 11 4,133,206 4.424.977 
Remeasumnt loss, net of tax 18 (340,509) (340,509) 

Retained earnings 19 108,256,026 113,864,243 
Total Equity -. 441,415,306 397,239,875 



Exhibit 8 

VISAYAN SURETY AN0 MSURAPICE CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the Yearn Ended December 31,2017 and 2018 
(In Philippine Pesos) 

Note 2017 2016 
-Revenues 
Earned premiums 20 240,578,21 I 225,161,792 
Earned commission 20 38,604,356 27,303,747 
Total Revenues 279,142,567 252,465,539 
Losses on Rre, bonds and casualty 22 101,263,617 91,568,213 
Net insurance benefits and claims 177,888,950 160,897,326 

-- 

Other Revenues 
Gain (loss) on recognition of market value 9 9,966,461 (1 0,227,644) 
Other Income 21 15,668,507 14,656,144 
Total Other Income 25,624,968 4,428,500 

Total 203,673,918 165,325,826 

Expanses 
Comrnlssions - bonds, fire, casualty and marine 91,308,717 74,144,433 
C~mpe~~et ion  end benefits 23 21,083,883 20,664,433 
Service fee 3,680,831 
Depreciation and amortization 11 12 2,286,745 2,724,581 
Retimment expense 78 2,054,447 1,860,862 
Professional fees 1,613,641 5,770,931 
Provision for doubtful ecoounts 1,642,624 3,183,170 
Rent 1,140,335 1,190,449 
Utilities 967,696 964,521 
Insurance 624,157 298,380 
Taxes and licenses 518,141 487,942 

20,083,504 14,835,288 
Total Expensets 147,024,520 126,124,990 

Net Income Before Income Tax 36,489,398 39,200,836 
Income Tax Expense 26 14,514,430 9,629,353 

Net Income before Other Comprehensive Income 41,974,968 29,571,483 

Other Comprehensive l m e  
Items to be recladied to pmb or loss in subsequent yeem: 
Unmalized loss on AFS financial asset 9 
Income tax effect _ _  9,26 194,563 2,638,845 

(453,981) (6,157,306) 

Items not to be reclassified to protit or loss in subsequent yews: 
Depreciation on a m i s a l  increment 11 
lncirna tax effect' ' 11,26 '125,044 '1 25,044. 

(291,771) (291,771) 

Appraisal increment on sold land I1 (14.493) 
Income tax effect 11,26 4,348- 

(10,145) 

Total Other Comprahensive Loss (745,752) (6,459,2221 

Total Comptehenslve Income for the Year 41,229,216 23,112.261 
* 

Earnings per share 2.30 15.28 11.83 
See accompenying notes to IkMndal sfnfemnh. 



VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE cowcmnm 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the Yean Ended December 31,2017 and 2016 
(in PhiUpplne Poses) 

Aulhorhrd Subscribed Additional Deposit. tor OUIW Comvrehe- humm 
Paid in Contingency Future Renaasuremcmt Unru)iud gain Appn&al Retained 

I Surpiw subrcrivtlon Low on AFSFA lwmmat Eamln(y Total 
Balance, Decamk 31,2014 1 ern www - 5,018.W 52.436.030 307,115,685 
Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets. net of tax 0 8.728.370 6.726.370 
~epredatlo; of a~misai  sumb. net of'tsx . . 
~ e t  Rwme for Gyear 31,008;807 31,008,607 
Balmce, Decarnber 31,2015 3.000,oOO 3M).000.000 2.500,OoO 250,000.000 250,W,OOO 1.500 (340m) 8,728,370 4,728,893 83.881.452 344,975,708 
Ufl~ealbed loss on AFS flnancid assets. net of tax 9 (6.157.3081 - .  - (6,157.306) 
Depredation of appdsal wrplus, net 
Reduction d appraisal haease on sold IUs 
RBCBIPI 01 ~~ntinaenc~ sWPIVS 
Net inanne ~IX tIhe year ' 29,571,463 29,571,483 
k d a ~ ,  December 31,2016 3W.000 3UO.000.000 2,500,600 250,OM),m 250,000,000 l.So0 28,720,600 f340.m) 5W.W 4,424,977 113,8@4,243 397,238,875 
Unreaated bas on AFS Rnandal essels, net of tax 9 w.881) (453.981 
Deprecialion of appmld surplus, nel 11 (291 m) 418.815 125,044 
ReclassiRcalkm to deposils 19 - (28,720,600) 28,720,800 
AddAional dspaoitd 19 - 2,529,400 2,529,400 
S W  &lidend dedared 79 - 500.MM 50.000.000 50.000.000 



VISAYAN SURETY AND IPlSURANCE CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Years Ended ~ecember31,2017 and 2016 
(In Philippine Pesos) 

Note 2017 2016 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Net income before income t& 56,489,398 39,200,836 
Non cash adjustments to reconcile income before tax: 

Depreciation and amortization 11, 12 2,286,746 2,724,581 
Provision for retirement 18 2,054,447 1,860,862 
Loss on recognition of market value 9 (9,956,461) 10,227,644 
Provision for doubtti~l accounts 6 1,642,624 3,183,170 
Amotiiatlon of bond discount 9 151,309 369,857 

Benefits paid 18 (534,766) 
Gain on sale of land 21 (2,122.050) 
Eamed interest on mortgage loans 2 I (4,430,274) (1 $1 7,459) 
Interest on bank deposits ' 21 (392.6n) (704,267) 
Interest income on bonds 21 (6,748,131) (6,259,037) 
Dividend Income 21 (1,535,278) (940,8531 
Operating income before working capital changes 39,026,837 45,623,284 
(Increase) Decrease in: 

Insurance receivables 6 27,190,731 9,710,615 
Other receivables 7 (4,216P00) 2,192.343 
Other current assets 10 30,450 (1,139.972) 

Changes in other assets 
Deposits 12 (6,317,908) (1 72,644) 
Loss reserve withheld by ceding companies 12 8,076,645 (7,282,426) 
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 12 (2,466,494) 13,712,154 

Increase (Decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13 2,579,703 7,481,318 
Due to reinsurers 14 (33,477,791) (2,222,930) 
Claims and losses payable 15 8,085,964 (12,658,159) 
Deposits 16 (2,671,886) (8,935,335) 
Unearned premiums 17 45,206,606 (1 1,814,3251 

Cash generated from operations 81,024,456 34,493,923 
Income tax paid 26 (16,172,696) (1 0,032,893) 
Net cash from operating activities 64,851,760 24,461,030 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Acquisition of financial asset through profit or loss 
Proceeds from sale of AFS financlal assets 
Acquisition of held to maturity financial assets 
Matured hekl to maturity financlal assets 
Acquisition of other financial assets 
Acquisition of properly and equipment 
Proceeds from &ale of land 
Acquisition of software 
Additional mortgage loans granted 
Callection of mortgage loans 
lnterest received on mortgage loans receivable 
lnterest received on bank deposits 
lnterest income on bonds 
Dividend income 21 1 ;636;278 .940;a53 
Net cash from (used in) investing activities (1 14,504,318) 13,613,565 

Cash Row from Financing Activities 
Contingency surplus received 
Deposit for future subscription received 19 2,529,400 
Net cash from financing activities 2,529,400 28,720,600 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (47,123,168) 66,795,196 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 5 226,303,129 159,507,933 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 9,970 .226,303,129 - 
See accompanykg notes to finandel Jletomenb. 



VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2017 and 2016 

1. Corporate Information 

Visayan Surety and Insurance Corporation (the "Company") was registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 9, 1999. It was primarily formed to 
save any person or persons or other entity from any loss, damage or liability arising from 
any unknown or future or contingent event; to indemnify or compensate any persons or 
person or other entity for any such loss, damage or liability and to guarantee the fidelity of 
persons holding public trust and to execute and guarantee bonds, and undertakings in 
judicial proceedings and to agree to the faithful performance of any contract or undertaking 
made with any public authority. The Company is also formed to act as an agent for 
insurance companies of every class and to conduct a general insurance agency and 
insurance brokerage business. The SEC registration number of the Company is 502 and 
its Insurance Commission (IC) Certificate of Authority is 2010/101-R granted in August 
2010. 

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of the Philippines. $he 
registered address of the Company is located at Unit 1403 Keppel Center, cor. Samar 
Loop & Cardinal Rosales Avenue, Cebu Business Park, Cebu City. The Company has 
branches in Davao City, Binondo Manila, Cagayan de Oro City and Dumaguete City. 

The President is the authorized representative of the Company to approve the financial 
statements. On April 3, 2018, the President approved the financial statements and 
authorized them for issue. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the prepamtion of these financial 
statements are summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

a. Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial Reporting 
Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board. 

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by 
PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement bases are 
more fully described in the accounting policies that follow. . *. 
6. Presentation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting Standard 
(PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Company presents all items of income 
and expenses in a single statement of comprehensive income. 



c. Functional and Presentation Currency 

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Company's functional and 
presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except when otherwise 
indicated. Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using its 
functional currency. Functlonal currency is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. 

2.2 Changes in Accounting Pollcies and Disclosures 

a. New and Amended Standards 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years, 
except that the Company has adopted the following new and amended PFRS, PAS and 
annual improvements effective as of January 1, 2017. 

Amendments to PAS 7, Statements of Cash Flows (Disclosure Initiative). The 
amendments address financial statements users' requests for improved disclosures 
about an entity's net debt relevant to understanding an entity's cash flows. The 
amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enables users of financial 
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including 
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes - e.g. by providing a 
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial 
position for liabilities arising from financial activities. 

The amendments affect disclosure only and do not have a signficant impact on the 
Company's financial position and performance. 

Amendments to International Accounting Standards (IAS) 12, Income Taxes - 
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses. In January 2016, the IASB 
issued the amendments to IAS 12 which clarify how to account for deferred tax assets 
related to debt instruments measured at fair value. They also address the diversity in 
practice regarding the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses. The 
amendments do not have a significant impact on the Company's financial position and 
performance. 

b. Effective Subsequent to 201 7 but not Adopted Early 

A number of new standards, amendments and improvements to standards and 
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2017, and have 
not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of 
these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company. 
Those which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Company does not 
plan to adopt these standards early and the extent of the impact is not yet determinable. 

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. This standard will replace PAS 39. It contains 
requirements for the classification and meausrement of financial assets and finanvcial 
liabilities, impairment, hedge accounting and derecognition. - .  
PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at 
amortied cost, fair value through profit or loss, or fair value through other 
comprehensive income, depending on their classification by reference to the business 
model within which they are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics. 

For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the 
fair value option is taken: the amount of change of fair value of a financial liability 
designated at N P L  that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is 
recognized in other comprehensive income, unless this creates an accounting 
mismatch. 



For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an "expected credit loss" 
model based on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract; it 
will no longer be necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before 
credit loss is recognized. 

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial 
statements to better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when 
hedging financial and non-financial riik exposures. 

PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 
Management is currently assesing the impact of PFRS 9 on the financial statements of 
the Company and it plans to canduct a comprehensive study of the potential impact of 
this standard prior to its mandatory adoption date to assess the impact of all changes. 

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. PFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 
and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts 
with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring 
goods or services to a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured 
approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is 
applicable to all entiUes and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements 
under PFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual 
periods beginning on or after January I, 2018, with early adoption permitted. 
Management is currently assessing the impact of the new standard. 

PFRS 16, Leases. PFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and sets out the principles for 
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The objective is to 
ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully 
represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial 
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the entity. PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted for entities that 
apply PFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of PFRS 16. Management is 
currently assessing the impact of the new standard. 

PFRS 17, insurance Contracts. In May, 2017, the IASB issued PFRS 17, lnsurance 
Contracts "PFRS 17) which replaces PFRS 4. PFRS 17 establishes the principles for 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of insurance contracts. PFRS 
17 requires companies to measure insurance contract liabilities at their current fulfillment 
values using one of three measurement models, depending on the nature of the 
contract. PFRS 17 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 
and is to be applied retrospectively to each group of insurance contracts unless 
impracticable. If, and only if, its impracticable to apply PFRS 17 retrospectively for a 
group of insurance contracts, an entity shall apply PFRS 17 using a modified 
retrospective approach or a fair value approach. PFRS 17 will affect how an entity 
accounts for their insurance contracts and how they report in the financial performance. 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 17 on its financial statements. 

2.3 Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer 
the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. 



The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming the market participants 
acts in their best economic interest. 

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and mlnimlzing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, . 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Levd 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); 
and 
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observabte market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
be re-assessing categoriuation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of nature, characteristics and risks of the assets and liability and 
the level of fair value hierarchy. 

2 4  Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks and is stated at its face value. Cash equivalents 
are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash with original maturities of three months or less from the dates of acquisition and are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash is unrestricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve (12) months after the end of the 
reporting period. 

2,5 Financial Adsets and Financial Liabilfbles 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or 
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized using trade date accounting. 
Derivatives are recognized on trade date accounting. 

1 $ 

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquistion of the financial asset, except for securities at fair value through 
profit or toss (FVPL). Transaction costs directly attributable for securities at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or IQS. 

a, Financial Assets 

Financial assets indude cash and other financial instruments. Financial assets; other than 
hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, 
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) 



financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management 
on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. 
The designation of financial assets is re-evaluated at every reporting date at which date a 
choice of classification or accounting treatment is available, subject to compliance with 
specific provisions of applicable accounting standards. 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in organized financial markets is determined by 
reference to quoted market bid prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions 
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs, that are active 
at the close of business at financial reporting date. When current bid and asking prices are 
not available, the price of the most recent transaction is used since it provides evidence of 
current fair value as long as there has not been significant change in economic 
circumstances since the time of the transaction. 

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined 
by using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using reference to 
similar instruments for which observable prices exist, discounted cash flows analyses, and 
other relevant valuation modds. 

Financial Assets at RlPL 

This category includes financial assets that are either classified as held for trading or are 
designated by the entity to be carried at fair value through profit or loss upon initial 
recognition. 

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the 
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified 
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Financial assets held for trading consist of debt 
instruments, including money-market paper, traded corporate and bank loans, and equity 
instruments, as well as financial assets with embedded derivatives. 

Financial instruments included in this category are recognized initially at fair value; 
transaction costs are taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income. Gains and 
losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in the statement of 
comprehensive income and are reported as 'Net gainsl(losses) on Wnanciai instruments 
classified as held k r  trading'. Interest income and expense and dividend income and 
expenses on financial' assets held for trading are included in 'Net interest Income' or 
'Dividend income', respectively. The Instruments are derecognized when the rights to 
receive cash flows have expired or the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifes for derecognising. 

The Company's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016 are disclosed in Note 9. 

Loans and Receivable@ 

Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted In m active market. They are not entered into with*the 
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as at FVPL, designated as 
AFS investments or HTM investments. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any 
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as 
well as through the amortization process. 

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from 
financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. 

' 



The Company's loans and receivables include insurance receivables, mortgage loan 
receivables, other receivables and short-term investments (Notes 6, 7, 8 and 9). 

HTM Investmentq 

These include nonderivative financial assets with futed or determinable payments and a 
fixed date of maturity, Investments are dassified as held-to-maturity if the Company has the 
positive intention and ability to hold them until maturity. Investments intended to be held for 
an undefined period are not included in this classification. 

These are initially recognized at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs 
and measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Interest 
on held-to-maturity investments is included in the statement of comprehensive income and 
reported as 'Interest and similar income'. In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss 
is reported as a deduction from the canying value of the investment and recognized in the . 
statement of comprehensive income as 'Net gains/(losses) on investment securities'. Held- 
to-rnaturtty investments includes corporate bonds. 

The Company's held-to-maturity financial asset as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are 
disclosed in Note 9. 

AFS Investments 

AFS investments are financial assets that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of 
time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, 
exchange rates or equity prices or that are not classifid as loans and receivables, held-to- 
maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

AFS financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, which is the cash consideration 
including any transaction costs, and measured subsequently at fair value with gains and 
losses being recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and 
foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognized. If an avalable- 
for-sale financial asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and is 
presented as reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income. However, 
interest is calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign currency gains and 
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Dividends an available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in 
the statement of comprehensive income in 'Dividend income' when the Company's right to 
receive payment is established. 

When the fair value of AFS financial assets cannot be measured reliably because of lack of . 

reliable estimates of Mure cash flows and discount rates necessary to calculate the fair 
value of unquoted equity and debt instruments, these investments are carried at cost, less 
any allowance for imparirment loss. 

The Company's AFS financial asset as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are disclosed in . - 
Note 9. .. 
b. Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are either classified as financial liabilities through profit or loss or other 
financial liabilities. 

The Company's financial liabilities are categorized under other'financial liabilities. 

Other financial liabilities include accounts payable and accrued expenses (excluding 
government and other statutory liabilities), due to reinsurers, claims and losses.payable and 
deposits. 



Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
agreements of the instrument. All interest retated charges are recognized as an expense in 
the statement of comprehensive income under the caption Financing Costs, except those 
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which 
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. 

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the 
initiil measurement of all financial assets and liabilities. 

After initial recognition, these liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate. 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are raised for support of long-term funding of 
operations. They are recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance 
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, 
are charged to profit or loss except for those which are capitalized as part of the cost of a 
qualifying asset, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are added to 
the w i n g  amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in 
which they arise. The Company does not have interest-bearing loans and borrowings as of 
December 31,2017 and 2016. 

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled within 
one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of the 
business, if longer), or the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period. 
Otherwise, these are presented as nancurrent liabilities. 

2 6  lmpalrment of Flnencial Assets 

The Company assesses at each end of reporting period whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or 
a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (an incurred "loss event") and that loss event has an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group d financial assets that can be 
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a 
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in 
interest or principal payments, the probability that they wiil enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults. 

a. Assets Cam.& at Amortized Cost 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at 
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial 
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the 
use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial 
assets that are not individually significant, If it is determined that no objective .evidence of 
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the 
asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that 



group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually 
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized 
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease 
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the 
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that 

' the canying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 

b. Assets Carried at Fair Value 

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the 
fair value of security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are 
impaired. If any such evidence exists for AFS securities, the cumulative loss - measured as 
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment 
loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss - is reclassified from equity 
and recognized in profrt or loss. Such reclassification is presented as an adjustment within 
other comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss on equity 
instruments are not reversed through profit or loss. 

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as AFS inoreases 
and the Increase can be obptiverly related to an event oar r ing after €he impairment loss 
was recognized in profit w loss, the impairment loss Es reversed through profit or loss. 

c. Assets Canied at Cost 

If there is objective evidence of an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is 
not carried at fair vatue because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of 
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a 
similar financial asset 

2 7  Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabiljfjes 

a. Financial Assets 

A financial asset is derecognized when (a) the rights to receive cash Rows from the asset 
have expired, (b) the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has 
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 
'pass-through' arrangement, or (c) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash 
flow$ fr6m the asset and either has transferred substantially aH the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a 'pass-through' arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred contml of the asset, the 
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset. 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original canying amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

b. Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 



original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

2.8 Offsefflng Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master 
iieftiiS$ ag~eements, and the related assets and liabiities are presented at gross in the 
statement of financial position. 

2.9 Reclassification of Financial Instruments 

A financial asset is reclassified out of the FVPL category when the following conditions are 
met: 

the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the 
near term; and 

e there is a rare circumstance. 

A financial asset that is reclassified out of the FVPL categqry is reslaasified at its fair value 
on the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of 
reclassification becomes its new cost or amortized cost, as applicable. 

2.70 Embedded Derfvaflves 

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivative 
if all of the following conditions are met: a) the economic characteristics and risks of the 
embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the 
host contract; b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative 
would meet the definition of the derivative; and c) the hybrid or combined instrument is not 
recognized at FVPL. 

The Company assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from 
the host contracts when the Company first becomes a party to the contract. Reassessment 
only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the 
cash flows that wouM othennrise be required. 

The Gompany has no bifurcated embedded derivatives as of December 31,2017 and 2018. 

2 I I Insurance Contracts - classification 

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. 
Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such 
contracts may also transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Company defines as 
significant insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an 
insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did 
not occur. 

Recognition and measurement 

(a) Shod-tern insurance mntracts 

These contracts are casualty, property and shortduration non-life insurance contracts. 

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company's customers against the risk of causing 
harm to third parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both 
conkastual and noncantraatual events, The typical pmtecrtion offered is designed for 



employers who become legally liable to pay compensation to injured employees (employers 
liability) and for individual and business customers who become liable to pay compensation 
to a third party for bodily harm or property damage (public liability). 

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company's customers for damage 
suffered to their properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake 
commercial activities on their premises could also receive compensation for the loss of 
earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities 
(business interruption cover). 

For all these contracts, premiums are recognized as revenue (earned premiums) 
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of premium received on in-force 
contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the 
unearned premium liability. 

Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are gross of any taxes or duties 
levied on premiums. 

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to income as incurred based on the 
estimated liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the 
contract holders. 

They include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and arise from events that have 
occurred up to the balance sheet date even if they have not yet been reported to the 
company. The Company does not discount its IiabiUties for unpaid claims other than for 
disability claims. 

Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual 
cases reported to the Company and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but not 
reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost of more complex claims that may be 
affected by external factors (such as court decisions). 

(b) Reinsurance contracts he@ 

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is 
compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the 
classification requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts 
held. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are dassified as financial 
assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is 
another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts. 

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are 
recognized as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from 
reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims 
and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable 
from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the 
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance 
contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts 
and are recognized as an expense when due. . t 
In certain cases a reinsurance contract is entered into retrospectively to reinsure a notified 
claim under the Company's property or casualty insurance contracts. Where the premium 
due to the reinsurer differs from the liability established by the Company for the related 
claim, the difference is amortized over the estimated remaining, settlement period. 

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there 
is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the 
canying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognizes that 
impairment toss in the income statement. The Company gathers objective evidence that a 
reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets held at 



amortized cost. The impairment loss is also calculated following the same method used for 
these financial assets. 

(c) Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts 

Receivables and payables are recognized when due. These include amounts due to and 
from agents, brokers and insurance contract holders. 

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company 
reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognizes that 
impairment loss in the income statement. The Company gathers the objective evidence that 
an insurance receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for loans and 
receivables. The impairment loss is also calculated under the same method used for these 
financial assets. 

2.12 Reinsurance Assets 

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business. Reinsurance assets 
represent balances due from reinsurance company. Recoverable amounts are estimated in 
a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the 
reinsurance contract. 

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an 
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective 
evidence exists that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of 
the contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the 
reinsurance can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is changed against profit or loss. 

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligation to 
policyholders. 

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance 
contracts. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and 
expense in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct 
business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Amounts 
payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract. 

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed 
reinsurance. 

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are 
extinguished or expired or when the contract is transferred to another party. 

2.13 Defemd Acquisition Costs (DA C) 

Commission and other acquisition costs incurred during the financial period that vary with 
and are related to securing new insurance contracts and or renewing existing insurance 
contracts, but which relates to subsequent financial periods, are deferred to the extent that 
they are recoverable out of future revenue margin. All other acquisition costs are recognized 
as expense when incurred. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, these costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
life of the contract. Amortization is charged to profit or loss. The unamortized acquisition 
costs are shown as deferred acquisition costs in the assets section of the statement of 
financial position. 

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an 
indication of impairment arises. The carrying value is written down to the ,recoverable 
amount and the impairment loss is charged to profit or loss. The deferred acquisition cost is 
also considered in the liability adequacy test for each reporting period. 



The Company has not recognized DAC since aH insurance contracts are for a term of 12 
months only. 

214  Other Assets 

Other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Company as a result of 
past events. They are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or value that can be 
measured reliably. 

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to 
flow to the Company beyond one year after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal 
operating cycle of the business, if longer), are classified as noncurrent assets. 

2.15 Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are carried at acquisition cost less subsequent depreciation, 
amortization and impairment losses, except for land and condominium which are stated at 
revalued amounts in 2017 and 2016. 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing 
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures for 
additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and 
maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. 

Land held for use in providing services, or for administrative purposes, is stated in the 
statement of financial position at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of 
revaluation, less subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed 
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from those 
that would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period. 

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and condominium Is 
recognized in other comprehensive income, except to the extent that it reverses a 
revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which 
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously 
expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and 
condominium is recognized in profrt or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, 
held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. 

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property and equipment commences once 
the assets are available for use and is computed using the straight-line method over the . 

following estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets as follows: 

Condominium and improvements 
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 
Transportation equipment 

25 years 
5 years 
5 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease or 
the estimated useful lives of the improvements, a period of 5 years, whichever is shorter. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the 
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The estimated 
useful lives, residual values and depreciation and amortization method of property and 
equipment are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

An item of Company's property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal.or when no 
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain 
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 



comprehensive income in the year the item is derecognized. On the subsequent sale or 
disposal or disposal of revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in 
the properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings. 

Fully depreciated and amortized property and equipment are retained in the accounts until 
they are no longer in use and no further depreciation and amortization are charged against 
current operations 

Property under construction is stated at cost less any impairment in value. This includes cost 
of construction, plant and equipment, capitalizable borrowing casts, and other direct costs 
associated to construotim. Property under construction is not depreciated until such time 
that the relevant assets are completed and available for its intended use. 

Construction in progress is transferred to the related property and equipment when the 
construction or installation and related activities necessary to prepare the property and 
equipment for their intended use have been completed, and the property and equipment are 
ready for commercial service. 

2.16 lmpaiment of Nonfkranclal Assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
nonfinancial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identif~d, corporate assets 
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the 
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation 
basis can be identified. 

For purposes of assessing impai~ment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets 
are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have 
not been adjusted. 

tf the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than . 

its carrying amount, the canymg amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to 
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, 
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss 
is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so 
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating 
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or 
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of 
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. , 

No impairment of nonfinancial assets was recognized in 2017 and 2016. 



2.17 Insurance Contract Llabifives 

Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when the contracts are entered into and the 
premiums are charged. These liabilities are known as outstanding claims provisions, which 
are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the 
reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs and 
reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be 
experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the 
ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date. The liability is 
calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection 
techniques based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for 
adverse deviation. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money and includes 
provisions for unearned premiums and incurred but not reported (IBNR) losses. 

No provision for catastrophic reserves is recognized. The liability is derecognized when the 
contract has expired, is discharged or is cancelled. 

Provision for Unearned Premiums 

The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable to intermediaries, 
attributable to subsequent periods or to risk that have not yet expired, is deferred as 
provision for unearned premiums using the 385' method, where the provision for unearned 
premiums pertains to the premiums for the last two months of the year. The change in 
provision for unearned premiums is taken to profit or loss in order that revenue is recognized 
over the period of risk. Further provision are made to cover claims under unexpired 
insurance contract which may exceed the unearned premiums and the premiums due in 
respect of these contracts. 

Liability Adequacy Test 

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed, to ensure the adequacy of 
insurance contract liabilities, net of related DAC assets. In performing the test, current best 
estimates of future cash flows and claims handling and policy administration expenses are 
used. Changes in expected claims that have occurred, but which have not been settled, are 
reflected by adjusting the liabilii for claims and future benefits. Any inadequacy is 
immediately charged to profit or loss by establishing and unexpired risk provision for losses 
arising from the liability adequacy tests. The provision for unearned premiums is increased 
to the extent that the future claims and expenses in respect to current insurance exceed 
future premiums plus the current unearned premiums reserve. 

2.18 Equity 

Share capital are presented at subscribed amount including interest for those paid The 
Company has issued par value capital stock that is classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of new capital stock are shown in equity as a deduction, net 
of tax, from the proceeds. 

When the Company issues its .par value shares, the proceeds shall be credited to the 
"Capital stock" account in the Company's statement of financial position to the extent ofqthe 
par value, with any excess being reflected as 'Additional paid-incapital" account in the 
Company's statement of financial position. 

Contingency surplus represents contributions of the stockholders to cover any deficiency in 
the Margin of Solvency as required under the lnsurance Cqde and can be withdrawn only 
upon the approval of the Insurance Commission 

Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any 
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related tax effects, is included in 
equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company. 



Retained earnings include all current and prior period results as disclosed in profit or loss in 
the statement of comprehensive income, reduced by the amount of dividend declared. The 
appropriated portion represents the amount which is not available for distribution. 

Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense, including 
reclassification adjustments that are not recognized in profit or loss as required by other 
PFRS. 

2.19 Revenue and Cost Recognition 

Revenue 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be reliably 
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or . 
receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, sales taxes and duties. The Company assesses 
its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as a principal or 
agent The Company has concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue 
arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognized: 

Premiums 

Premiums from short term insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of 
the contracts using the 24th method except for the premiums from marine cargo risks 
wherein revenue is recognized based on the provisions in the Insurance Code. The portion 
of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired periods of the policies at the end of the 
reporting period are accounted for as Reserve for Unearned Premiums and presented in the 
liability section of the Statement of Financial Position. The net changes in this account 
between the end of the reporting period are charged or credited to income. 

Commission 

Commission from insurance contracts are recognized by the Company when collected. 

interest Income 

lnterest income from bank deposits, special savings accounts, held to maturity financial 
assets and mortgage loans recognized as interest accrues taking into account the effective 
yield on the related asset. 

Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividends is established. 

Other income 

Other income is recognized by the Company when earned. 

Gain on market value 

Trading and securities gain is recognized when the ownership of the security is transferred 
to the buyer and is computed as the difference between the selling price and the carrying 
amount of the security. Trading and securities gain also results from the mark-to-market 
valuation of the securities at the valuation date. 



Expense 

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of 
outfiows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, 
other than those relating to distributions to equity participants. 

Benefits and claims 

Gross benefits and claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, and changes 
in the gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities, except gross changes in the provision 
for unearned premiums which are included in net premiums earned. It further includes 
internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and 
settlement of claims. Insurance claims are recorded on the basis of notifications received 
while claims IBNR are based on historical experience. 

Commission expense 

Commission expense are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when 
incurred 

Other underwrifing expenses 

Other underwriting expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as 
incurred. 

General and administrative expenses 

These expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the period 
these are incurred. 

2.20 Bornwing Costs 

Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of a qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the 
activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are 
being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are substantially ready for 
their intended use. If the wrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an 
impairment loss is recognized. 

Borrowing costs incurred after the assets are substantially ready for their intended use are 
expensed immediately. 

2.21 Employee Benefits 

a. Defined Benefit Man 

The net defined benefit liabiltty or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined 
benefit obtigation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets 
(if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. 
The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of 
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. 

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuariafly determined using 
the projected unit credit method. 

Defined benefit costs comprise service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit liability or 
asset and remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset. 



Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses an 
nonroutine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are 
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. 

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the 
net defined benefit IiabHity or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined 
by applying the discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds to the net defined 
benefit liability or asset. Net interest on the net defined benefd liability or asset is recognized 
as expense or income in profit or loss. 

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any 
change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are 
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying 
insurance policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Company, nor can 
they be paid directly to the Company. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price 
information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by 
discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk 
associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets 
(or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related 
obligations). 

The Company's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a 
defined benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only 
when reimbursement is virtually certain. 

b. Termination Benefit 

Termination benefits are employee beneffis provided in exchange for the termination of an 
employee's employment as a result of eittter an entity's decision to terminate an employee's 
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee's decision to accept an offer 
of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. 

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity 
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related 
restructuring costs. Initial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefits are 
measured in accordance with the nature of the employee benefR, as either post-employment 
benefits, short-term employee benefits, or other long-term employee benefits. 

c. Employee Leave Entitlement 

Employee entidements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued 
to the employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before 
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services 
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period. 

2.22 Leases 

The Company determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the 
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset. 

Comrmanv as Lessee 

Leases which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are recognized as assets 
and liabilities in the statement of financial position at the inception of the lease at amounts 



equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of minimum 
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and 
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability. Finance charges are directly charged against income. Capitalized 
leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and 
the lease term. 

Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net of 
any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in profit or loss on actual 
payment since the lease contract is renewable on an annual basis. Associated costs such 
as repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred. 

Current 

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those clalms from, or obligations to, fiscal 
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at 
the end of the reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws 
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. 
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense 
in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Defemd 

Deferred tax atsets and liabilities are provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on 
all temporary differences at the end of reporting perlod between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset 
revaluations. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary 
differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate 
income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused tax losses, to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilized. 

Deferred tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. In respect of 
taxable temporary differences associated with investment in a subsidiary, deferred income 
tax liability is not recognized where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences 
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

The canying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and reduced to the extentthat it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized 
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the 
deferred income tax assets to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rgtes that are expected to apply 
to the period when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting 
period. 

Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in 
the statement of income. 



Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax 
liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority. 

Value Added Tax 

Revenue. expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of value added tax VAT) 
except where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from 
the taxation authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition 
of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable. 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as 
part of "Other current assets" or "Accounts payable and accrued expensesn accounts in the . 
statement of financial position. 

2.24 Relafed Party Transactions 

A party is related to the Company if it has direct or indirect control or is controlled by an 
entity whether parent or subsidiary, if it has interest in the Company that gives its significant 
influence over the Company and if it is a member of the key management personnel of the 
Company. 

PAS 24 provides additional guidance and cla~ity in the scope of the standard, the definitions 
and disclosures for related parties. It also requires disclosure of the compensation of key 
management personnel by benefit type. 

2.25 lntangible assets 

lntanaible assets acauired separately 

Intangible assets include software used in operations and administration which are 
accounted for under the cost model. The cost of the asset is the amount of cash or cash 
equivalents paid or the fair value of the other considerations given to acquire an asset at the 
time of its acquisition. Capitalized software costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives (ranging from 3 to 10 years) as these intangible assets are 
considered finite. 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs Incurred to 
acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer 
software are expensed as incurred. 

lm~airment of tanaible and intanaible assets excludina aoodwill 

Intangible assets with definite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are 
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset 
may be impaired. . . 
2.26 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of 
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the 
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises Q ~ r n  the presence of a legal or 
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events. 

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, 
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are 
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 



determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money is 
material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate that 
reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the 
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. 

In those cases where the possible oufflow of economic resource as a result of present 
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be 
measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly, possible 
inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of 
an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial 
statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually 
certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate 
asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed 
unless the possibility of an outflow or resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A 
contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable. 

The Company does not have contingent liabilities which require disclosure as of December 
31, 2017 and 2016. 

2.28 Events AtYer End of Reporting Period 

Post year-end events that provide additional Information about the Company's position at 
the end of each reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. 
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial 
statements when material. 

There are no events after end of reporting period involving the Company which require 
disclosure as of December 31,2017 and 2016. 

229 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Dtlmafes and Errors 

PAS 8 removes the concept of fundamental error and the allowed alternative to 
retrospective application of voluntary changes in accounting policies and retrospective 
restatement to correct prior period errors. It defines material omission or misstatements, 
and describes how to apply the concept of materiality when applying accounting policies and 
correcting errors. 

2.30 Earnings Per Share 

Earnings per common share is determined by dividing net income for the year by the 
weighted average number of conynon shares issued and outstanding during the year. . . 
Earnings per share is computed as: 

2017 2016 
Net income 41,974,968 29,571,483 
Divided by the weighted average 

number of issued and outstanding common shares 2,746,575 2,500,000 
Earnings per share 15.28 11.83 



The computation of weighted average number of subscribed common shares is as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Beginning 2,500,000 2,500,000 
Issued during the year 

500,000 shares on July 1,2017 246,576 - 
Number of outstanding common shares 2,746,575 2,500,000 - 

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates 

The Company's financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require 
management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the financial 
statements and related notes. 

The estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon 
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances of the Company's financial 
statements. Actual resutts could differ from those estimates. The following are the relevant 
estimates perfwmed by management on its December 2017 and 2016 financial statements. 

3.1 Judgments 

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the 
foltowing judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

(a) Functional Currency 

The Company, based on the relevant economic substance of the underlying circumstances, 
has determined its functional currency to be the Philippine peso. It is the currency that 
mainly influences the Company's revenue and costs and expenses. 

(b) Operating Leases 

As Lessee 

Management exercises judgment in determining whether substantially all the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the leased assets are transferred to the Company. Lease 
contracts, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the leased items, are capitalized. Otherwise, they are considered as operating 
leases. 

Management has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and condition of the 
arrangements, all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the property remain with 
the lessor. Accordingly, the leases are accounted for as operating leases. 

The Company's total rent expense amounted to P1,140,335 and P1,190,449 in 2017 . . and 
2016, respectiiely (Note 24). 

(c) Provisions end Contingencies 

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and 
contingencies. Policies on recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of 
contingencies are discussed in Notes 2.26 and 2.27 and retevant disclosures are presented 
in Note 15. 



(d) Distinction Between Investment Properties 8nd Owner-managed Properties 

The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its 
judgment, the Company considers whether the property generates cash flows largely 
independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-managed properties generate 
cash flows that are attributable not only to the property but also to other assets used in the 
process of supplying educational services. 

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital appreciation and 
another portion that is held for use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes. 
If portion can be sold separately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the 
Company accounts for such portion separately. If the portion cannot be sold separately, the 
property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for 
use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in 
determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as 
investment property. The Company considers each property separately in malting its 
judgment. 

The Company does not have investment properties as of December 31,2017 and 2016. 

(9) Classr%ication of Time Deposits 

The Company classifies time deposits depending on its intention in holding such financial 
assets. If the Company intends to hold such financial assets to earn interest income 
regardless of original maturity, it classifies such financial assets as HTM investments. 
However, if the Company's intention is to hold such financial assets for operatiinal 
purposes; it classifies such financial assets as cash equivalents. 

The Company classifies its time deposits as cash equivalents as of December 331,2017 and 
2016. The Company's time deposits amounted to P44,225,412 and P41,926,561 as of 
December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively (Note 5). 

(f) Amortization of Leasehold Improvements 

The Company's leasehold improvements are amortized over 5 years, which is the estimated 
useful life of the asset (see Notes 2.1 5 and 11) regardless of the term of the lease contracts 
which is usually shorter than the expected useful life of the improvements because it is 
highly probable that the lease contract will be renewed before the end of such contract. A 
decision by management not to renew its lease agreement will result in a significant change 
in profit or loss in the period such decision is made. 

3.2 Estimates 

The estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon 
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances of the Company's financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The relevant estimates 
performed by management on its December 31, 2017 and 2016 financial statements are 
discussed below. . % 

(a) The Ultimate Liability Arising from Claims Made Under Insurance Contracts 

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is 
the Company's most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources .of uncertainty 
that need to be considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay 
for such claims. 

The main assumption underlying the estimation of the claims provision is that the 
Company's past claim development experience can be used to project future claims 
development and hence ultimate claims costs. Historical claims development is mainly 
analyzed by accident years as well as by significant business lines and claims types. Large 



claims are usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of lass 
adjustor estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future development. In 
most cases, no explicit assumption used are those implicit in the historical claims 
development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgment is 
used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future. 

Claims and losses payable amounted to P35,998,001 and P27,932,037 as of December 31, 
201 7 and 2016, respectively (Note 15). 

(b) Useful Lives of Company Properfy and Equipment 

The Company estimates the useful lives of Company property and equipment based on the 
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives 
of Company property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if 
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or 
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, 
estimation of the useful lives of Company property and equipment is based on collective 
assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar 
assets. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected 
by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The 
amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in 
these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of Company 
property and equipment would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease 
noncurrent assets. 

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization amounted to 
P23,497,188 and P25,079,752 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 
11). 

(c) Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets 

Except for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, PFRS requires that an impairment 
review be performed when certain impairment indicators are present. The Company's policy 
on estimating the impairment of non-financial assets is discussed in detail in Note 2.16. 
Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values 
reflected in the financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in 
these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any 
resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations. 

No impairment losses on other nonfinancial assets were: recognized in 2017 and 2016. 

(d) Fair Value of Land and Condominium 

The fair value of the Company's land and condominium are determined from market-based 
evidence by appraisal that was undertaken by an independent firm of appraisers in 
calculating such amounts. While management believes that the assumptions and market- 
based evidences used are reasonable and appropriate, significant diPkrrences in actual 
experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect. the valuation of 
the Company's land and condominium. However, management believes that the carving 
amounts of condominium as of December 2013 do not differ materially from that which 
would be determined using appraised value and fair value at reporting date (Note 11). 

(e) Impairment of Available for Sale Securities 

The Company follows the guidance of PAS 39 on determining when an investment is other 
than temporarily impaired. This determination requires significant judgment. In making this 
judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which 
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term 
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector 
performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flow. 



The carrying values of the Company's AFS financial statements amounted to P12,248,454 
and P37,092,M as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Company has not 
recognized any allowance for impairment losses as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively (Note 9). 

Impairment of Receivables 

Allowance is made for specific and groups of accounts, where objective evidence of 
impairment exists. The Company evaluates these accounts based on available facts and 
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the length of the Company's relationship with the 
customers, the customers' current credit status based on third party credit reports and 
known market forces, average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss 
experience. 

Insurance receivables amounted to P138,249,283 and P167,082,538 as of December 31, 
2017 and 2016 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. (see Note 6). Provision for 
doubtful awunts amounted to P1,642,524 and P3,183,170 in 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Other receivables amounted to P33,563,600 and P29,347,200 as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016, respectively (Note 7) 

Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets 

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and 
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

The Company's deferred tax assets amounted to P5,131,402 and P4,182,740 and as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (Note 26). 

Retirement Benefits 

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post employment medical benefits as 
well as the present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. 
The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the 
determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and 
its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The net defined benefit 
liability amounted to P16,462,152 and P13,942,470 as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively (Note 18). 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of 
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, 
with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit 
obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and 
is modified accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases 
and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the specific country. 

Revenue Recognition 

The revenue recognition policies require the use of estimates and assumptions that may 
affect the reported amounts of the revenues and receivables. 



Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Financial assets and liabilities of the Company are recognized initially at cost which is the 
fair value of the consideration given (in case of asset) or received (in case of liability). 
Subsequent to initial recognition, assets and liabilities are either valued at amorlized cost 
using the effective interest method or at fair value depending on classification. 

The following table sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company's 
- financial assets and liabilities recognized as at December 31, 2017 and 2016. There are no 

material unrecognized financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 201 7 and 2016. 

Carrying Value Fair Value 
2017 2016 201 7 2016- 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Insurance receivables 
Other receivables 
Mortgage loan receivable 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss 
AFS financial asset 
HTM financial asset 
Short-term investments 21,248,290 21,009,076 21,248,290 21,009,076 
Total Financial Assets ,756 690,612,119 

Financiat Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued 

expenses* 24,939,546 23,645,636 24,939,546 23,645,636 
Due to reinsurers 44,644,774 78,122,565 44,644,774 78,122,565 
Claims and losses payable 35,998,001 27,932,037 35,998,001 27,932,037 
Deposits 39,338,725 42,010,611 39,338,725 42,010,611 
Total Financial Liabiilties f44,921,046 171,710,849 144,921,046 171,710,849 

'net of payeble to govemmerlt regulatory agencies 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of 
fair value for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been 
determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based on the methods described 
below. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The carrying amount approximates the fair value primarily due to the relatively short-term 
maturity of these financial instruments. 

Receivables /Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

Current receivables are reported at their net realizable values, at total amounts less 
allowances for impairment losses. Current liabilities are stated at amounts reasoh%bly 
expected to be paid within the next twelve months or within the Company's operating cycle. 

Due to ReinsurersKlaims and Losses Payable/Deposits 

Liabilities are stated at amounts reasonably expected to be. paid within the next twelve 
months or within the Company's operating cycle. 



Other Financial Assets 

Financial Assets at Fair Value throuqh Profit or Loss - Held for Tradinq 

These are measured at fair value based on the quoted price at market as of the balance 
sheet date. 

Held to Maturitv 

These are carried in the books at amortized cost except time deposits and special savings 
deposits which are measured at their face amount approximating their fair value. 

Available for Sale 

Unquoted AFS financial assets are carried at cost less any impairment in value. These 
financial assets are equity shares of private entities and are not traded in an active market, 
hence its fair value cannot be determined reliably. 

Short-term Investments 

These pertain to special savings deposits which are measured at cost since cost equals the 
face value of the investment. 

The financial assets measured at fair value in the statements of financial position are 
categorized in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial 
assets and liabilities into three levels based on the significance of inputs used in measuring 
the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities. 

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the 
lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement. 

The breakdown of the Company's financial assets measured at fair value in its statements of 
financial position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (see Note 9): 

2017 Level I Level 2 Level 3 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss 59483,389 - - 
AFS financial asset 12,248,454 

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss 49,526,928 - - . - 
AFS financial asset 37,092,444 

4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

Governance Framework 

The Company has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference and 
with the responsibility for developing policies on market, credit, liquidity, insurance and 
operational risk. It also supports the effective implementation of policies at the individual 
business unit levels. 

The policy defines the Company's identification of risks and its interpretation, limit structure 
to ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, alignment of underwriting and 
reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals and specify reporting requirements.' 



Strategy in Using Financial Instruments 

By their nature, the Company's activities are principally related to the use of financial 
instruments. The Company seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term 
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining sufficient liquidity to 
meet all claims that might fall due. 

The Company also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions in traded and over 
the-counter instruments, to take advantage of short-term market movements in equities and 
bonds. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that there are insufficient funds available to adequately meet the 
credit demands of the Company's customers and repay deposits on maturity. The Company . 
manages liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality to ensure 
short-term funding requirements are met. In addition, the company seeks to maintain 
sufficient liquidity to take advantage of interest rate and exchange   ate opportunities when 
they arise. 

The Company's financial liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 have contractual 
maturities which are presented below: 

Total Current Noncurrent 
Carrying On W[thin 6 8-1 2 1 to5 

201 7 Value Demand Months Months Years 
Accounts payable m d  accrued 

expnses* 24,939,W 24,939,646 
Due to reinsurers 44,644,774 44,644,774 
Claims and losses payable 35,998,001 36,998,001 
Oeposits 39,338,125 39,338,725 

Total Current Noncurrent 
Carwing On Within 6 6-1 2 I to 5 

2018 Value Demand Months Months Years 
Accounts payable and accrued 

expense$* 23,645,636 23,645,636 

Due to reinsurers 78,122,565 78,122,565 

Claims and losses payable 27,932.037 27,932,037 

Deposits 42,010,611 42.010,611 

171,710,849 171,710,849 
*net of peyable to govsmmenf regulatory amndes 

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its financial assets. The 
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial 
assets including interest that will .be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on 
non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity 
risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis. 



-- -- 
Total Current Noncurrent 

Carrylng On Within 6 6-1 2 I t 0 6  
201 7 Value Demand Months Months Years 
Cash and cash 

equivalents 179,179,970 134,964,558 44,225,412 

Insurance receivables 138,249,283 32,732,003 75,120,541 32,039,263 
Other receivables 33,563,600 4,292,023 29,271,577 
Mortgage loan receivable 118,209,081 - 55,457,160 62,751,931 
Financiai assets at fair 

value through proflt 
and loss 59,483,389 58,483,389 

AFS financial asset 12,248,454 12.248.454 

HTM financial asset I 92,185,689 - 13,056,933 - 170,128,766 
Short-term investments 21,248,290 - 6,225,718 16,022,572 

Total Current Noncurrent 

Carrying On Within 6 6-12 1 to5 
2016 Value Demand Months Months Years 
Cash and cash equivalents 226,303,129 184,376,568 41,926,561 
Insurance receivables 167,082,538 25,873,087 126,976,684 14,232,767 
Other receivabies 29,347,200 5,770,827 23,576,373 
Mortgage loan receivable 16,083,333 - 16,083,333 
Financial w t s  at fair value 

through profit and loss 49,526,928 49,526,928 
AFS financial asset 37,092,444 37,092,444 
HTM financial asset 144,167,471 - 13,064,418 - 131,103,053 
Short-term investments 21,009,076 - 21,009,076 

6 9 0 , 6 1 2 , 1 1 9  302,639,854 221,627,369 

Market Risk 

The Company's exposure to market risk, the risk of future loss from changes in the price of a 
financial instrument, relates primarily to its holdings in debt securities. The Company 
manages its risk by identifying, analyzing and measuring relevant or likely market risks. It 
recommends various limits on value-at-risk, stop loss, trading volume and earning-at-risk. 

Interest Rate Risk Sensitivitv Analvsis 

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk arises from the following interest-bearing 
financial instruments: 

201 7 2016 
Cash and cash equivalents* 174,097,268 221 , I  19,638 
Mortgage loan receivable 
HTM financial asset 
Short-term investments 21,248,290 21,009,076 

505,740,318 402,379,518 
*excluding Cash on hand 

The changes in interest rates used in the analysis of cash equivalents and held to maturity 
financial assets have been determined based on the average volatility in interest rates in the 
previous 12 months. The changes in interest rates used in the analysis of time deposits and 
treasury bills are based on the volatility of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP)'s 
compilation of domestic rates on short-term investment in the past twelve months. 



Increase (Decrease) in Effect on 
Interest Rate Profit before Tax 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
Cash equivalents 8.04% 0.01% 15.479 4,193 

(0.04%) (0.01 %) (1 5,479) (4,193) 
HTM financial assets 2.14% 1.84% 4112774 2,652,681 

(2.14) (1 -84%) (4,112,774) (2,652,681) 
Short-term investments 0.54% 0.68% 1 14,741 142,862 

(0.54%) (0.68%) (1 14,741) (142,862) 

The Company's mortgage loans receivable have minimal exposure to interest risks as the 
interest rates imposed by the Company are fixed until maturity of these loans. 

Price Risk 

The Company's price risk exposure at year end-relates to financial assets and liabilities 
whose values will fluctuate as a result of change in market prices, principally held for trading 
equity securities. 

Such investment securities are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of 
instruments arising either from factors specific to individual instruments or their issuers or 
factors affecting a l  instruments traded in the market. 

The Company's market risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring 
objectives and constraints on investment, diversification plan and limits on investments. 

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all 
other variables held constant, showing the impact on equity: 

Increase (Decrease) in Effect on 
Variable Equity 

2017 2016 201 7 2016 
Philippine Stock Exchanne, Inc. 5.00% 5.75% 2,974,189 2,847,798 

Insurance risk 

The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility of occurrence of insured event and 
uncertainty of the amount and timing of the resulting claim. The principal risk the Company 
faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the 
carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, 
severity of claims, and actual benefits paid that are greater than originally estimated. 

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of 
insurance contracts as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the 
board by change in any subset of the portfolio. The variability of risks can also be improved 
by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines. 

. . 
The majority of reinsurance business ceded is placed on a quota share basis with retention 
limits. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the 
assumptions used for ascertaining tho underlying policy benefits and are presented in the 
statements of financial positlon as "Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses". 

Although the Company has reinsurance agreements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations 
to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to 
the extent that any reinsurers is unable to meet its obligations assumed'linder such 
reinsurance agreements. The Company's placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it 



is neither dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company 
substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. 

For the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company issued general accident 
insurance contracts. The table below sets out the concentration of the claims liabilities, net 
of recoverable as of December 31,2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016 
Gross amount of losses and claims payable 35,998,001 27,932,037 
Less: Reinsurance recoverable on u-npaid losses (7,185,871) (4,719,377) 
Net amount - 28,812,130 23,212,660 

Key assumptions 

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Company's past claims 
development experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs and 
claim numbers for each accident year. Judgment is used to assess the extent to which 
external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates. 

Other key assumptions include variations in interest, delays in settlement and changes in 
foreign currency rates. 

Sensitivities 

The insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions. Because of 
delays that arise between occurrence of a claim and its subsequent notification and eventual 
settlement, the outstanding claims provision is not known with certainty at the reporting 
dates. 

Financial risk 

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial 
liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is 
that in the long-term its investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising 
from its insurance and investment contracts. The most important components of this 
financial risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. 

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of 
which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The risks that the Company 
primarily faces due to the nature of its investments and liabilities are interest rate risk and 
equity price risk. 

The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous 
periods. 

Credit rlsk 

The Company has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable 
to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk 
are: 

reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities; 
amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid; 
amounts due from insurance contract holders; 
amounts due from insurance intermediaries; and 
counterparty risk with respect to derivative transactions. 

The Company structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure 
to a single counterparty, or groups of counterparty, and to geographical and industry 



segments. Such risks are subject to an annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level 
of credit rjsk by category and territory are approved quarterly by the Board of Directors. 

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. Thls does not, however, discharge the 
Company's liability as primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the 
Company remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of 
reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to 
finalization of any contract. 

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which 
comprise of cash and cash equivalents, its exposure to credit risk arises from the default of 
the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying value of these instruments. 
This is mitigated, however, by the Company's policy of placing it funds only in reputable 
banks and financial institutions. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of reporting period is as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Cash and cash equivalents, net of cash on hand 174,097,258 221,119,638 
Insurance receivables. gross 139,891,807 167,082,538 
Other receivables 33,563,600 29,347,200 
Mortgage loan receivable 118,299,081 16,083,333 
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 59,483,389 49,526,928 
AFS financial asset 12,248,454 37,092,444 
HTM financial asset 192,185,689 144,167,471 
Short-term investments 21,248,290 21,009,076 
Total Financial Assets 760,927,568 685,428,628 

Information on concentration of credit as to counterparties as of December 31, 2017 and 
2016 as follows: 

201 7 High Grade Standard Substandard Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 174,097,258 174,097,258 
Insurance receivables - IOS,S17,280 34,374,527 139,891,807 

Other receivables 29,271,577 4,292,023 33,563,680 
Mortgage loan receivable - 118,209,081 11 8,109,081 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss 59,483,389 59,483,389 

AFS financial asset 12,248,454 12,248,454 

HlW financial asset 192'1 85,689 192,185,689 

Other investments 21,248,290 21,248,290 

459,263,080 252,997,938 38,666,550 760,927,968 

2016 High Grade Standard Substandard Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 221,119,638 221 ,I 19,638 
Insurance receivables - 141,209,451 25,873,087 167,082,538 
Other receivables - 23,576,373 5,770,827 29,347,200 
Mortgage loan receivable - 16,083,333 16,083,333 
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss 49,526,928 49,526,928 
Available for sale financial asset 37,092,444 T .re 37,092,444 

Held to maturity financial asset 144,167,471 144,167,471 
Other investments 21,009,076 21,009,076 

472,915,557 180,869,157 31,643,914 685,428,628 



High Grade financial assets apply to highly rated financial obligors, strong corporate 
counterparties and personal borrowers with whom the Company has excellent repayment 
experience. 

Standard Grade financial assets apply to counterparties with risk profiles that are subject to 
closer monitoring and scrutiny with the objective of managing risk and moving accounts to 
improve rating category. 

Substandard Grade financial assets are accounts that are past due and specifically 
identified to be impaired. 

The analysis of the Company's receivables as of December 31 ,2017  and 2016 according to 
credit quality is as follows: 

Past Due 
Neither Past 

Due nor 
201 7 Impaired Impaired Not impalred Total 
Premiums receivables 33,460,756 1,642,524 32,732,003 67,835,283 
Recehrable from reinsurers 72,056,526 72,056,524 
Doc stamps receivable 13,679,927 13,679,927 

Accounts receivable 679,459 4,292,023 4,971,482 
Premiums due from ceding 4,033,707 4,033,707 

Bonds recoverabk 3,435,157 3,435,157 
Accrued interest receivable 1,952,576 1,952,576 
Advances to employees 1,861,447 1,851,447 

Loans receivable 1,645,870 1,645,870 
Others 1,993,435 1,993,435 

Mortgage loan receivable 118,209,081 11 8,209,081 

291,664,488 

Past Due 

Neither Past Doe 
2016 nor Impaired Impaired Not Impaired Total 

Premiums receivable 24,402,097 25,873,087 50,275,184 
Receivable from reinsurers 1 16,807,354 1 16,807,354 

Accounts receivable 7,041,481 4,597,402 12,812.308 

Doc stamps receivable 5,056,350 5,056.350 

Premiums due from ceding 3,962,499 3,962,499 
Bonds recoverable 3,435,157 3,435,157 
Accrued interest receivable 1,583,576 1,583,576 
Loans receivable 1,121,622 1,121,622 
Advances to employees 634,578 634,578 

Others 741,110 741,1?0 

Momage loan receivable ' 16,083.333 16,083,333 

212,513,071 

The movements in allowance for impairment losses in respect of receivables during the 
years ended December 31,2017 and 2016 is shown in Note 6. 

The allowance for impairment losses on receivables as of-~ecember 31, 2017 and 2016 
relates to receivables from customers which have been long outstanding and specifically 
identied to be impaired. 

The Company has not provided additional allowance for doubtful accounts on insurance and 
other receivables which are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period 



because management believes there has not been a significant change in credit quality ot 
these receivables. 

There was no additional impairment on the rest of the financial assets of the Company. 

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

This consists of the following: 

2017 2016 
Cash 134,954,558 184,376,568 
Cash equivalents 44,225,412 41,926,561 

179,'l79,970 226,303,129 

Cash accounts with banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates. 
Cash equivalents are placements that have an average maturity of 90 days and earn 
interest ranging from 3% to 7% in 2017 and 2016. 

Interest earned on bank deposits amounting to P392,677 and P704,267 in 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as interest income 
(Note 21). 

6. Insurance Receivables 

This consists of the following: 

201 7 201 6 
Premiums receivable 67,835,283 50,275,184 
Receivable from reinsurers 72,056,524 1 16,807,354 

139,891,807 167,082,538 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,642,524) 

138,249,283 167,082,538 

The aging of premiums receivable is shown as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Current 33,460,756 24,402,097 
Past Due 
91 days to 1 year 7,595,261 2,180,285 
0-1 year 12,108,019 7,941,087 
1-2 years 5,722,978 4,899,764 
2-3 years 739,307 2,525,296 
Beyond 3 years 8,208,962 8,326,655 

34,374,527 25,873.087 
67,835,283 50,275,184 

Premiums receivable pertain to due from contract holders for unpaid insurance premiums. 
The average credit period on insurance contracts is 90 days. No interest is charged on 
receivables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice. Premium receivables with age 
of over 90 days and above amounted to P34,374,527 and P25,873,087 as of December . . 31, 
2017 and 2016. 



Amounts due from reinsurers comprise of reinsurance receivables where the Company has 
the right to call a letter of credit given by reinsurers to cover losses on credit insurance 
provided to policyholders. 

The movements in allowance for impairment losses with respect to receivables during the 
year ended December 31,2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Beginning - 1,133,099 
Provision 1,642,524 2,500,084 
Write off - (3,633,183) 
Ending 1,642,524 

The allowance for impairment losses on receivables as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 
relates to receivables from customers which have been long outstanding and specifically 
identified to be impaired. The Company wrote off receivables amounting to P3,633,183 in 
2016 representing deceased and missing borrowers since these are no longer collectible 

Reinsurance receivables pertain to amounts recoverable from reinsurers on losses already 
paid by the Company. These amounts are due and demandable. 

7. Other Receivables 

This consists of the following receivables: 

Note 201 7 2016 
Documentary stamps receivable 13,679,927 5,056,350 
Accounts receivable 
Premiums due from ceding 
Bonds recoverable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Advances to employees 
Loans receivable 
Others 1,993,435 741,110 

33,563,600 29,347,200 

The aging of the above receivables is shown as follows: 

2017 2016 

Current 29,271,577 23,576,373 
Past Due 

1-30 days 
3 1 -60 days 
60-90 days 
91-120 days 
Over 120 days 558,212 1,998,316 

4,292,023 5,770,827 

Accounts receivable consists of non-interest-bearing open accounts with agents, brokers and 
other parties. 

Documentary stamps receivable pertains to documentary stamps and other taxes on 
uncollected premiums receivables. 



Bonds recoverable are claims paid by the Company to be recovered from the assured. 

Accrued interest receivable pertains to interest earned but not yet received on time deposits 
and held to maturity financial assets. 

Included in other receivables is salvage recoverable which is secured. 

The Company provided allowance for doubtful accounts and further wrote off receivables 
amounting to P683,086 in 2016 representing deceased and missing borrowers since these 
are no longer collectible. 

The Company has not provided an allowance for doubtful accounts on its other receivables 
which are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period because management 
believes there has not been a significant change in credit quality and these receivables are 
fully collectible. 

8. Mortgage Loans Receivable 

This pertains to short-term loans granted to various borrowers which are unsecured and 
earns interest at a rate of 12% per annum payable on a monthly basis. 

Interest earned on mortgaged loans amounted to P4,430,274 and P1,917,459 in 2017 and 
2016, respectively (Note 21). 

9. FlnancSal Assets 
- ,  

201 7 201 6 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 59,483,389 49,526,928 
Available for sale 12,248,464 37,092,444 
HTM 192,185,689 144,167,471 
fl 21,009,076 

285,165,822 251,795,919 

a. financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

These are listed equity instruments acquired designated as FVPL based on initial recognition 
measured at fair value. These investments are designated by the Company at FVPL. 

This is accounted for as follows: 

Cost Market Value 
2017 2016 201 7 2016 

Balance beginning 49,158,302 16,517,812 49,826,928 27,114,082 
Acauisitions at cost - 32,640,490 - 32,840,990 

~ a i n  (Loss) on recognition of - 9.956.461 116.227.6441 

Dividends earned and received from held for trading financial assets amounted to 
P1.535.278 and P940,853 in 2017 and 2016, respectively (Note 21). 



b. Available for Sale 

AFS securities are unquoted debt and equity securities that are purchased and held 
indefinitely and will be available to be sold when the need for liquid funds arises during the 
operating cycle. The breakdown of AFS securities is as follows: 

2017 2016 
Quoted 11,693,722 36,537,712 
Unquoted 554,732 554,732 

The movement of available for sale financial assets is as follows: 

Beginning balance 
Additions 
Disposal 
Unrealized gain (loss) (848,544) (8,796,151) 

12,248,454 37,092,444 

There were no amounts reclassified from equity and reported in profit and loss during the 
period. 

The movement of unrealized gain on AFS securities is as follows: 

-- - - - 

6 726,370 
Unrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial asset (648,544) - (8,796,151 ) 
Income tax effect . 194,563 2,638,845 
Current year gain (loss), net of tax (463,981) (6,157,306) 

11 5,083 569,064 

c. HTM 

HTM securities are debt securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity 
that an enterprise has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. These consist of 
treasury bills and corporate bonds. These are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. 

The breakdown as to maturity of HTM financial assets are as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Current 13,056,933 - - . . - . . - 

Noncurrent 179,128,756 144,167,471 
192,185,689 144,167,473. 



The movement of HTM financial assets is as follows: 

2017 2016 - 
Beginning balance 144,167,471 142,107,105 
Additional acquisltlon of held to maturity 48,169,627 31,903,323 
Matured during the year - (29,473,100) 
Amortization of bond discount (premium) (1 51,309) (369,857) 

192,185,689 144,167,471 .. 
Interest earned on held to maturity financial assets amounted to P6,596,822 and P5,889,180 
in 2017 and 2016, respectively (Note 21). 

d. Short-tenn investments 
a 

These investments pertain to time deposits with maturity values of more than three (3) 
months but less than one (1) year amounting to P21,248,290 and P21,009,076 as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These investments earn interest ranging from 
3% to 7% in 2017 and 2016. 

Investment in Closed Companies 

The Company has investments in closed companies amounting to P288,630 in 2017 and 
201 6 broken as follows: 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 63,630 
Available for sale 225,000 

aas,ssa 
Impairment losses have been recognized on the above investments recognized as 
unrealized loss in both profit and loss and other comprehensive income. 

10. Other Current Assets 

This account pertains to prepaid insurance and rent at the end of the year. 



11. Property and Equipment 

This account is broken down as follows: 

Condominium 
Land and Furniture, 

fat Improvement Fixture and 
revalued (at reva/ued Mice Transportation Leasehold 
amounf) amaunt) equipment Equipment Improvement Total 

Costs 

Dec. 31,2015 157,205 28,524,219 5,795,620 2,012,496 377,374 36,866,914 
Additions .. 1,018,265 1,189,589 300,148 2,508,002 

Reclassification (1 32,205) 132,205 
Disposal (20,000) (20,000) . 
Dec. 31,2016 137,205 28,392,014 6,813,885 3,202,085 809,727 39,354,916 

Additions - 468,396 163,467 631,883 
Disposal (281,681) (281,681) 
C k .  31,2017 137,205 28,392,014 7,282,281 3,083,871 809,727 39,705,098 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Dec. 31,2015 4,632.649 4,979,311 I ,771,502 308,534 11,691,996 
Provision I ,300,715 722,445 139,835 420,173 2,583,168 

Dec. 31,2016 5,933,364 5,701,756 1.91 1,337 728,707 14,275,164 
Provision 1,300,715 637,905 194,787 81,020 2,214,427 

Disposal (281,681) (281,681) 
Dec. 31,2017 7,234,079 6,339,661 1,8%4.43 809,727 16,207,910 

Net Book Value 

Dec. 31,2016 137,205 22,458,650 1,112,129 1,290,748 81,020 25,079,752 

Dec. 31,2017 137,205 21,157.936 942,820 1,269,428 - 23,497,188 

Additions during the year were valued at acquisition costs and other direct costs other 
expenditures necessary to bring the asset to its intended use. These properties are not 
encumbered and no impairment losses were recognized during the year. 

Depreciation charged to operations amounted to P2,214,427 and P2,583,168 and in 2017 
and 201 6 ,  respectively. 

A fully depreciated transportation equipment was sold in 2017 for P47,470 resulting to a 
gain of the same amount (Note 21). 

Revaluation of Land 

In 2000, the Company's lands were appraised by Cuervo Appraisal Co., Inc., .an 
independent appraiser. The reconciliation of these lands is as follows: 

2017 2016 
Cost 37,783 37,783 
Appraisal Increment 99,422 99,422 

In 2016, the Company sold land with a sound value of P20,000 and a cost of P.5,507 for a 
selling price of P2,142,050 generating a gain on sale of P2,122,050 (Note 21). 



The valuation technique used by the appraiser in determining the fair value of these lands 
fall under Level 2. 

No updated appraisal conducted on the land since the amount of the land is immaterial. 

Revaluation of Condominium 

Condominium unit is stated at revalued amount. The related revaluation increment is 
reported in the equity section of the statement of financial position under the "Appraisal 
Increment" account. 

In December 2013, the Company's condominium unit with a carrying value of P19,020,578 
was appraised by the Asian Appraisal Co., Inc., an independent appraiser, to have a sound 
value of P26,493,000, resulting into appraisal surplus of P7,472,422. 

The carrying value of these condominium units at cost amounted to P15,253,355 and 
P16,137,254 as of December 31,201 7 and 2016, respectively. 

The valuation technique used by the appraiser in determining the fair value of the 
condominium unit fall under Level 2. 

Appraisal Increment 

In compliance with PAS 16, Property and Equipment and PAS 12, lncome Taxes, the 
Company recognized deferred tax liability on its appraisal increment. The balances are as 
follows: 

Note 201 7 2016 
Appraisal increment 5,904,580 6,321,399 
Less: Deferred tax liability 26 1,771,374 1,896,422 
Net 4,133,206 4,424,977 

The breakdown of appraisal increment is as follows: 

Land 69,595 69,595 
Condominium 4,063,641 4,355,382 

4,133,206 4,424,977 - - 
The reconciliation of appraisal increment on condominium is as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Beginning, net of tax 4,424,977 4,726,893 

Current year adjustments 
Depreciation on appraisal increment (416,815) (416,815) 
Income tax effect 125,044 125,044 

(291,771) (291,771) 
Appraisal increment on sold land - (1 4,493) 
Income tax effect - 4,348 - (1 0,145) 

Total current year adjustments, net of tax (291,771) (301,916) 
4;424,977 



12. Other Assets 

This account consists of: 

2017 201 6 
Loss reserve withheld by ceding 2,454,546 10,530,192 
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 7,185,871 4,719,377 
Deposits 7,367,217 1,049,307 
Software-net 735,665 168,211 

17,743,298 16,467,087 

Deposits represent utilities meter deposits. 

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses is the reinsurer's share on the losses or claims 
_that isy&tabese#W by tbCcxrtpanj+etel5). ~'fhearralysisofthisaccomtis as fallows 

2017 2016 
Beginning balance 4,719,377 18,431,531 
Losses incurred and recoverable from reinsurer 7,485,871 4,719,377 
Amounts settled by reinsurer (4,719,377) (18,431,531) 

Loss reserve withheld by ceding pertains to amount withheld by ceding insurance 
companies on paid losses. 

Software pertains to the accounting system used by the Company. This is amortized over 
a period of 5 years. 

Shown below is the reconciliation of software as of December 31, 2Q17 and 2016: 

Cost 
Dec. 31,2015 
Additions 141,236 
Dec. 31.2016 4,110,790 
Additions 639,772 
Dec. 31,2017 4,750,562 

---- ------ 

Accumulated Depreclaff on 
Dec. 31.2015 
Provision 141,413 
Dec. 31,2016 3,942,579 
Provision 72,318 
Dec. 31,2017 4,014,897 

Q 

Net Book Value 



13. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

This account consists of the following: 
- ~ 

201 7 2016 
Accounts payable 24,939,1346 23.645.636 . . 
Payable to government regulatory agencies 8,408,643 7,122,850 

33,348,189 30,768,486 

Accounts payable are short-term obligations to suppliers and creditors of the Company. 

Payable to government regulatory agencies pertains to remittances to SSS, PHlC and 
HMDF due in the year. 

The fair values of accounts payable and a c c ~ e d  expenses have not been disclosed as, due 
to their short duration, management considers the carrying amounts recognized in the 
statements of financial position to be a reasonable approximation of their fair values. 

I .  Due to Reinsurers 

This pertains to payable to treaty and facultative reinsurers of the Company. 

These payables relate to the following: 

Due to retrocessionaires are unremitted share in premiums of retrocessionaires. 

Funds held for retrocessionaires represent portion of the reinsurance premium ceded to 
retrocessionaires which was withheld by the Company in accordance with treaty and 
facultative agreements. 

Due to reinsurers amounted to P44,644,774 and P78,122,565 as of December 31, 2017 and 
201 6, respectively. 

15. Claims and Losses Payable 

Outstanding claims will become payable and materialize into claims paid as and when 
amounts of insured losses suffered by policyholders have been ascertained and agreed, 
without any contractual maturity date. 

The provision is sensitive to many factors such as interpretation of circumstances, judicial 
decisions, economic conditions and climatic changes and is subject to uncertainties such as: 

Uncertainty as to whether an event has occurred which would give rise to a 
< 

policyholder suffering an insured loss; 

Uncertainty as to the extent of policy coverage and limits applicable; and 

Uncertainty as to the amount of insured loss suffered by the policy holder as a result 
of an event occurring. 

Claims and losses payable amounted to P35,998,001 and P27,932,037 as of December 31, 
201 7 and 2016, respectively. . . 



The analyses of this payable is as follows: 

Note 2017 2016 
Beginning balance 27,932,037 40,590,196 
Losses incurred 101,253,617 91,568,213 
Losses paid (93,187,653) (104,226,372) 
Ending balance 35,998,001 27,932,037 
Amount to be recovered from reinsurer 12 (7,185,871) (4,719,377) 
Net 28,812,130 23,212,660 

16. Deposits 

This pertains to refundable miscellaneous deposits from various policy holders and agents. 
These deposits do not earn interest. These deposits amounted to P39,338,725 and 
P42,010,611 as of December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively. 

17. Unearned Premiums 

The reconciliation of unearned premiums is as follows: 

Note 2017 2016 
Balance beginning 139,332,804 151,147,129 
Premiums written during the period 285,783,816 21 3,347,467 
Realized during the period 20 (240,578,211) (225,161,792) 

184,538,409 139,332,804 

Unearned premiums are broken down as follows: 

201 7 201 6 
Casualty 11 7,684,945 87,555,626 
Fire 
Bonds 
Marine and engineering 19,283,829 13,216,177 

184,538,409 139,332,804 

Unearned premiums are the portion of premiums that relate to the unexpired periods of the 
policies at the end of each reporting period. 

The difference between the unearned premiums for the year is presented as decrease 
(increase) in earned premiums in the statements of comprehensive income. 

- I .  
18. Retirement Benefits 

The Company's defined month retirement benefit plan is noncontributory which provides 
retirement benefit equal to one (1) month pay for every year of service in the Company with 
the latest salary as the basis. The plan is not funded and is not registered with the Bureau of 
Internal Revenue. 



The expense recognized in profit and loss as of December 31,201 7 and 2016 is as follows: 

Current service cost 939,049 894,333 
Interest cost I ,I 15,398 966,529 
Retirement expense 2,054,447 1,860,862 

The movements in retirement liability are shown as follows: 

- - 

Accrued Benefit Obligation 
Beginning balance 13,942,470 12,081,608 
Retirement expense recognized 2,054,447 1,860,862 
Benefits paid (534,765) - 

15,462,152 13,942,470 

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post employment medical benefits as 
well as the present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. 
The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. The principal assumptions 
used in determining pension and post-employment medical benefit obligations for the 
defined benefit plans are shown below: 

Discount rates 8% 8% 
Future salary increases 3.5% 3.5% 
Turnover rate 3% 3% 

There were no changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used in 
preparing sensitivity analysis. 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes 
of each significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting 
period, assuming if at1 other assumptions were held constant 

December 31,2017 Increase (Decrease) Effects 
Discount rates +50 basis points 3,328,204 

5 0  basis points (3,328,204) 
Turnover rate +0.25% 2,131,668 

-0.250/0 (2,131,668) , 

Future salarv increases +I  % 2,137,241 



December 31,2016 Increase (Decrease) Effects 
Discount rates +50 basis points 3,014,596 

-50 basis points - (3,014,596) 
Turnover rate +0.25% 1,930,807 

-0.25% (1,930,807) 
Future salary increases +1% 1,935,855 

The latest valuation conducted by an actuary was as of 2009. The assumptions used in the 
valuation may have already changed. Management believes, however, that these changes 
will not have a material effect on the statement of financial position. 

19. Capital Disclosums 

Share C 8 p h l  

Capital stock consists of: 

Shares Amount 
2017 2016 201 7 2016 

Authorized 
Common - PI00 par value 

per share 3,000,000 3,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 

Common Stock 
Issued and outstanding 3,000,000 2,500,000 300,000,O~O 250,000,000 

The Company has 59 stockholders, each owning 100 shares or more shares. Its shares are 
not traded in any stock exchange or over the counter market. 

In June 2013, the Board of Directors approved a resolution approving the declaration of a 
24% stock dividends based on the paid up capital in 2012 amounting to P39,000,000. The 
declaration resulted to a fractional shares totaling 30 shares or P3,000. The fractional 
shares were later issued resulting to an additional paid in capital amounting to P1,500. 

Contingency Surplus 

This represents contributions of the stockholders to cover any deficiency in the Margin of 
Solvency as required under the lnsurance Code and can be withdrawn only upon the 
approval of the lnsurance Commission. Contingency surplus amounted to P28,720,600 as 
of December 31, 2016. However, these contributions were applied to deposit for future 
subscription in 2017. 

Deposit for Future Subscription 

On October 15, 2017, the Board of Directors and its stockholders approved a resolution to 
increase its authorized capital stock from P300,000,000 to P1,000,000,000. The payments 
for additional subscription from stockholders amounting to P31,250,000 are reported in the 
equity section of statements of financial position as 'Deposits for Future Subscription" 
pending application of the increase in the authorized capital stock since the application is 
already in process with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 



Additional Capital Disclosures 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are: 

to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going cdncern, so that it can 
continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 

To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services 
consummately with the level of risk. 

Debt-to-Equity Ratio 

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. It manages the capital 
structum and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the 
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, 
the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

Consistently with others in the industry, the Company monitors its capital on the basis of the 
adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as adjusted net debt over capital. 
Adjusted net debt is calculated as total debt (as shown in the statement of financial position) 
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e., 
share capital, revaluation increment, other comprehensive income and retained earnings) 
other than amounts recognized in equity relating to cash flow hedges, and including some 
forms of subordinated debt. 

The Company's strategy has not changed in 2017 and 2016. The adjusted net debt-to-equity 
ratios at December 31, 201 7 and 2016 are as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Total debt 361,003,027 340,810,961 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 179,179,970 226,303, 129 
Adjusted net debt 181,823,057 114,507,832 
Divided by: Total equity 441,44 6,306 397,239,875 
Adjusted net debt-toequity ratio 0.41 0.29 

Retained Earnings 

The movement of the unappropriated retained earnings is as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Beginning 11 3,864,243 83,861,452 
Stock dividend declared (50,000,000) - 
Appraisal increase on sold lot 14,493 
Depreciation on appraisal surplus 41 6,815 416,815 
Net income for the year 41,974,968 29,571,483 

On June 15, 2017, the BOD approved the declaration of stock dividends to stockholders on 
record as of June 30, 2017 equivalent to one (1) share for every five (5) share held or a total 
amount of P50,000,000. On the same day, the stockholders ratified the declaration. 

w 

Urnitation on Dividend Declaration 

The Company's BOD is authorized to declare dividends. A cash dividend declaration does 
not require any further approval from the stockholders. However, a stock dividend 
declaration requires further approval of the stockholders holding or repfesenting not less 
than two-thirds of the Company's outstanding capital stock. Dividends may be declared and 



paid out of the unrestricted retained earnings which shall be payable in cash, property, or 
stock to all stockholders on the basis of outstanding stock held by them, as often and at 
such times as the BOD may determine and in accordance with law. 

Section 195 of the lnsurance Code provides that a domestic insurance company shall 
declare or distribute dividends on its outstanding stock only from profits remaining on hand 
after retaining unimpaired: 

the entire paid-up capital stock; 
the margin of solvency required; 
the legal reserve fund required; and 
a sum sufficient to pay all net losses reported or in the course of settlement and all 
liabilities for expenses and taxes. 

The Company is required to report such dividend declaration or distribution to the IC within 
30 days from the date of such declaration. 

Moreover, the SEC, through its Memorandum Circular 11 dated December 5, 2008 has set 
guidelines in determining the appropriate amount of Retained Earnings avaiktble for 
dividend distribution. This shall be based on the net profit for the year based on the audited 
financial statements, adjusted for unrealized items which are considered not available for 
dividend declaration. These unrealized items consist of the following: 

sharelequity in net income of the associate or joint venture 
unrealized foreign currency gains, except those attributable to cash and cash 
equivalents 
unrealized actuarial gains arising from the exercise of the option of recognizing actuarial 
gains or losses directly to the statement of comprehensive income 
fair value adjustment arising only from marked-to-market valuation which are not yet 
realized 
the amount of deferred tax asset that reduced the amount of income tax expense 
adjustment due to deviation from PFRSIGenerally Accepted Accounting Principles which 
results to gain 
other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings. 

Capital Management 

The Company maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and 
to adequately protect the policyholders. The level of capital maintained is higher than the 
minimum capital requirements set by the regulators and the amount computed under the 
RBC Model. To ensure compliance with these externally imposed capital requirements, it is 
the Company's policy to monitor the paid-up capital, net worth and RBC requirements on a . 

quarterly basis as part of the Company's internal financial reporting process. 

The premiums received by the Company from the policyholders are properly invested not 
only to provide for policy obligations but also to serve as capital or surplus to provide margin 
of safety which will attract insurance buyers. 

The funds invested shall produce an investment income that will be needed to ";ay 
stockholders a fair return. While part of this income are due to favorable loss experience and 
sound cost management, a major portion of additional profrts must be earned by managing 
the investment portfolio to produce a higher return on investment. While there may be a 
wide range of investment opportunities, the investment portfolio must always reflect the 
safety of the funds. 

Since those funds are held in fiduciary capacity, the lnsurance Code (the "Code") contains 
investment provisions that the Company should observe to protect the interest of the 
policyholders and of the stockholders. 



The three (3) general classifications of investment requirements are: 

1. Capital Investments - The Company must invest at least 25% of its minimum paid- 
up capital in bonds or other evidences of debt of the Government of the Philippines 
or its political subdivisions or in government-owned or controlled corporations and 
entities, including the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. 

Furthermore, investments shall at all times be maintained free from any lien or 
encumbrance and shall be deposited and held by the Commissioner of the IC for the 
benefit and security of the policyholders. 

2. Reserve Investment - The Company must invest 100% of the Reserve for unearned 
premiums and Reserve funds withheld for authorized reinsurer in common or 
preferred stocks and government or private bonds, real estate and real estate loans, 
collateral loans, adequately secured obligations and other securities as may be 
approved by the Commissioner. 

3. Surplus Investment - After complying with the capital and reserve investment 
requirements, the Company may invest any portion of its funds, representing earned 
surplus in stocks, bonds, real estate, equities of other financial institutions, engaged 
in buying and selling of short term debt instruments, securities issued by registered 
enterprises under R.A. 5186, otherwise known as the Investment Incentives Act. 

Margin of Solvency 

The Company required to maintain at all times, an MOS equal to P500.000 or 10% of the 
total amount of its net premiums written during the preceding year, whichever is higher. The 
MOS shall be the excess of the value of its admitted assets (as defined under the Code), 
exclusive of its paid-up capital, over the amount of its liabilities, unearned premiums and 
reinsurance reserves. 

The estimated amounts of non-admitted assets as of December 31,2016, as defined under 
the Code, which are included in the accompanying statements of financial position follow: 

2016 
Premiums in course of collection (direct) 25,873,087 
Other receivables 14,982,335 
Financial assets 1,756,931 
Property and equipment - net 1,427,641 
Other assets 15,114,046 

The Company is still finalizing the amount of non-admitted assets as of December 31, 201 7 

The Company is also still in the process of computing for its 2017 and 2016 MOS to be 
reported to the IC. 

The final amount of the MOS can be determined only after'the accounts of the Company 
have been examined by the IC, specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as 
defined in the Code. 

If an insurance company fails to meet the minimum required MOS, the IC is authorized to 
suspend or revoke all certificates of authority granted to such companies, its offcers and 
agents, and no new business shall be done by and for such Eompany until its authority us 
restored by the IC. 



Fixed Capitalization Requirements 

On August 15, 2013, the President of the Philippines approved the Republic Act No. 10607 
to be known as the "New lnsurance Code" which provides the new capitalization 
requirements of all existing insurance companies based on net worth on a staggered basis 
starting June 30, 2013 up to December 31, 2022. The following presents the amount of 
required net worth and the schedule of compliance per New Insurance Code: 

Networth Compliance Date 
P 250,000,000 June 30,2013 

~ecember 31,2016 
December 31,2019 
December 31,2022 

The Company has not complied with the required net worth as of December 31, 2017 and 
2016. The Company is in the process of increasing its authorized capital stock with SEC. 

Unimpaired capital requirement 

Insurance Memorandum Circular (IMC) 22-2008 provided that for purposes of determining 
compliance with the law, rules and regulations requiring that the paid-up capital should 
remain intact and unimpaired at all times, the statement of financial position should show 
that the net worth or equity is at least equal to the actual paid-up capital. The Company has 
complied with the unimpaired capital requirement. 

Risk- based Capital Requirements 

IMC No. 7-2006 provides for the RBC framework for the non-life insurance industry to 
establish the required amounts of capital to be maintained by the companies in relation to 
their investment and insurance risks. Every non-life insurance company is annually required 
to maintain a minimum RBC ratio of 100% and not fail the trend test. Failure to meet the 
minimum RBC ratio shall subject the insurance company to the corresponding regulatory 
intervention which has been defined at various levels. 

The RBC ratlo shall be calculated as networth divided by the R0C requirement. Networth 
shall include the company's paid-up capital, contributed and contingency surplus and 
unassigned surplus. Revaluation and fluctuation reserve amounts shall form part of 
nehnrorth only to the extent authorized by the IC. 

The following table shows how the RBC ratio as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was 
determined by the Company: 

2016 201 5 
Net worth 284,436,807 277,214,291 
RBC requirement 76,655,514 83,514,529 
RBC Ratio 3.71 3.32 

The final amount of the RBC ratio in 2017 can be determined only after the accounts of the 
Company have been examined by the IC. 

+ 

IMC 10-2006 integrated the compliance standards for the fixed capitalization and RBC 
framework. The fixed capitalization requirement for a given periid may be suspended for 
insurers that comply with the required RBC hurdle rate, provided that the industry complies 
with the required Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rate. The IMC provides the annual 
schedule of progressive rates for the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rates and the RBC 
Hurdle Rates from 2007 to 201 1. For the review year 201 1 which shall be based on the 
2010 synopsis, the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rate is 90% and the RBC Hurdle Rate 
is 250%. 



On June 1, 2012, the DOF issued DOF Order 15-2012 which provides that after 2012, 
compliance with prescribed minimum paid-up capital requirement may be deferred for 
existing insurers that meet the RBC hurdle rate of 150%. Failure to achieve one of the rates 
will result in the imposition of the fixed capitalization requirements for the period under 
review. 

Pursuant to Section 194 of the Amended lnsurance Code (R.A. 10607), the lnsurance 
Commission conducted a review of the current Risk-based Capital (RBC) Framework 
contained in lnsurance Memorandum Circulars Numbered 6-2006 and 7-2006 both dated 
October 5, 2006. On June 10, 2015, the lnsurance Commission issued Circular Letter No. 
2015-30 requiring all non-life insurance to participate in parallel runs for the RBC 2-QIS 
(Quantitative Impact Study). 

Circular Letter No. 201 5-29 prescribes the new financial reporting framework (FRF) that will 
be used for the statutory quarterly and annual reporting. This also includes rules and 
regulations concerning Titles 111 and IV of Chapter Ill of the Amended lnsurance Code and 
all other accounts not discussed in the Amended lnsurance Code but are used in accounting 
of insurance and reinsurance companies. 

Circular Letter 2015-32, Valuation Standards for Non-life lnsurance Policy Reserves, 
prescribes the new valuation methodology for the nonlife insurance companies. Non-life 
insurance companies will be changing the basis of valuation of their non-life insurance 
reserves. In addition to the unearned premium reserves, the concept of unexpired risk 
reserves is also included in the calculation of the premium liability. The incurred but not 
reported (IBNR) reserves will now be computed using actuariil projection techniques such 
as but not limited to the chain ladder method, expected loss ratio method and Bornheutter- 
Ferguson method. A margin for adverse deviation is provisionally set at 10% during the 
parallel runs and shall be incorporated on both premiums and claims liability valuation. 
Discount rates to be used shall be based on the latest PDST-R2 rates and the Bloomberg 
IYC Curve for PhP and USD-denominated policies. respectively. 

Circular Letter No. 2015-31 discussed the transition period and full implementation 
requirements for FRF, valuation standards for insurance policy reserves and new risk-based 
capital framework. The new regulatory requirements in the Circulars shall take effect after a 
transition period, the purpose of which is to allow the insurance industry to assess the 
collective impact of implementing FRF, Reserving and RBCZQIS simultaneously. Full 
implementation will be June 30, 2016 with transition cut-off date as at January 1,2016. 

20. Earned Premiums 

This account consists of: 

Note 201 7 2016 
Casualty 248,354,048 186,091,984 
Fire 76,480,113 64,553,720 
Marine and engineering 41,913,651 29,625,663 
Bonds 19,678,142 15, I 29,6\37 
Reinsurance assumed 4,778,104 4,691,411 
Reinsurance ceded ( I  05,420,241) (86,744,948) 
(Increase) Decrease in unearned premiums (45,205,606) 11,814,325 

17 240,578,211 225,161,792 
- .  

Earned commission pertains to commission received from reinsurance companies 
amounting to P38,564,356 and P27,303,747 in 2017 and 2016, respectively. . 



21. Other Income 

This account consists of: 

Note 201 7 2016 
Interest income on bonds, net 9 6,596,822 5,889,180 
Interest on mortgage loan 8 4,430,274 1,917,459 
Dividend income 9 1,535,278 940,853 
Interest on bank deposits 5 392,677 704,267 
Gain on sale of property and equipment 11 47,470 2,122,050 
Miscelianeous income 2,665,986 3,082,335 

Miscellaneous income pertains to service fees and other charges collected by the Company 
from the policyhoiders. 

lnterest income on bonds is net of amortization of premium amounting to P151,309 and 
P369,857 in 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

22. Losses on Fire, Bonds and Casualty 

This account consists of: 

201 7 2016 
Casualty 93,424,607 78,368,051 
Fire 5,936,224 6,155,680 
Marine and engineering 1,031,621 3,593,950 
Losses on RI assumed 185,469 1,493,842 
Bonds - 41,000 
Direct loss adjustment 675,696 1,915,690 

23. Compensation and iineflts 

This account consists of: 

201 7 201 6 
Salaries and wages 15,574,052 15,204,774 
SSS, Philhealth and Pag-ibig contribution 1,498,248 1,398,124 
Allowances and bonuses 17,967 409,90Q, 
Other employee benefits 3,993,616 3,651,635 

21,083,883 20,664,433 



24. Lease Disclodsures 

The Company leases the premises where its branch offices are located. The lease 
agreements are renewable annually at the option of the lessor. 

The Company's total rent expense amounted to P1,140,335 and P1,190,449 in 2017 and 
201 6, respectively. 

These contracts of lease are renewabie annually hence the minimum lease payment and 
straight line method of recognizing rent expense, per PAS 17, Leases, are not applicable. 
Rent expense is reported based on actual amount paid or payable per contract. 

25. Other Operating Expenses 

This account consists of: 

Note 
Printing and office supplies 
Advertising and promotion 
Representation and entertainment 
Underwriting expense 
Transportation and travel 
Communication and postage 
Repairs and maintenance 
Donation and contribution 
Directors' fee 
Agency expense 
Membership dues and contribution 
Gasoline and oil 
Miscellamous expense 6,747,740 3,922,909 

20,083,504 14,835,288 - 
Miscellaneous expenses include marketing, litigation, hauling, training, appraisal and 
accreditation expenses. 



28. lncome Taxes 

The computation of Normal Income Tax (NIT) and MCIT for 2017 and 2016 are shown 
below: 

NIT 
- A 

Note 2017 2016 
- Net Income Before Income Tax 56,489,398 39,200,836 

Less: lncome Subjected to Final Tax 
Dividend income 
Interest on bonds 
Interest on bank deposits 

Retirement benefrts paid 
Accounts written off 
Gain on recognition of market value 

Add: Depreciation of appraisal surplus 
~etirement expense 
Appraisal portion on sold lots 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Loss on recognition of market value 9 - 10,227,644 

Net Income Before income Tax 41,587,181 43,053,251 

Income Tax Expense at 30% thereof 12,476,184 12,995,075 
Less: Quarterly payments 6,637,321 5,134,235 

Creditable withholding tax 3,049,949 1,296,314 

MClT 

Note 201 6 2016 
Revenues 304,767,535 256,894,039 
Less: lncome Subjected to Final Tax 

Dividend income 20 ( I  ,535,278) (940,853) 
Interest on bonds 20 (6,596,822) (5,889,180) 
Interest on bank deposits 20 (392,677) (704,267) 

Realized gain on sale of land - 14,493 
Loss (Gain) on recognition of market value 9 (9,956,461) 10,227,644 

286,286,297 259,601,876 
Less: Direct Expenses 

Salaries, wages and other benefits 12,6S0,330 12,398,660 
Commissions - bonds and fire 91,308,717 74,144,433 
Losses on fire, bonds and casualty 22 101,253,617 91,568,213 

205,212,664 1 78,111,3C@ 

MClT Due at 2% thereof 1,621,472 1,629,811 



The reconciliation between the income tax expense at the statutory income tax rate and the 
income tax expense as shown in the statements of comprehensive income fotlows: 

2017 2016 
Income tax computed at the statutory income tax rate 12,476,154 12,915,975 
Effects of deferred tax assets and. liability: 

Retirement expense 
Gain (Loss) on recognition of market value 
Retirement benefits paid 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Accounts written off - 1,294,880 

Current 12,476,154 12,915,975 
Benefit 2,038,276 (3,286,622) 

14,514,430 9,629,353 

lncome tax presented through profit and loss and through other comprehensive Income is as 
follows: 

Through profit and loss 

2017 2016. 
Net Income before tax 56,489,398 39,200,836 

lncome tax at 30% thereon 
Non taxable income 
Appraisal increase on sold lots 
Depreciation of appraisal increase i 25,044 125,044 

9,629,353 

Through other comprehensive income 
Gain (Loss) on recognition of market value-AFS 
Appraisal increase on sold lots 
Depreciation of appraisal increase 125,044 425,044 

319,607 2,509,453 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 201 7 and 201 6 arise principally from 
the following: 

2017 2016 
Defetred Tax Assets 
Accrued retirement liability 4,638,645 4,182,740 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 492,757 .. - 

5,131,402 4,182,740 

Defemed Tax Liabilities 
Gain on recognition of market value-WPL 3,063,194 76,256 
Gain on recognition of market value-AFS ' 49,321 243,885 
Appraisal increment 1,771,378 1,896,422 

4,883,893 2,216,563 
. . 



A reconciliation of the deferred tax assets and liabilities is shown below: 

Deferred fax assets 
Accrued Allowance for 

Retirement Doubtful 
Liability Accounts Total 

December 31,201 5 3,624,482 339,929 3,964,411 
Provision 558,258 954,951 1,513,209 
Write off - (1,294,880) (1,294,880) 
December 31,2016 4,182,740 - 4,182,740 
Provision 616,334 492,757 1,109,091 
Retirement benefits paid (1 60,429) - (160,429) 
December 31,2017 4,638,645 492,757 5,131,402 

Deferred tax liabilities - 
Gain on Gain on 

recognition of recognition of 
market value- market value- ADDraisal 

NTFL AFS lndrease Total 
December 31,201 5 3,144,549 2,882,730 2,025,814 8,053.093 
Provision (3,068,293) (2,638,845) - (5,707,138) 
Applied - - (129,392) (129,392) 
December 31,2016 76,256 243,885 1,896,422 2,216,563 
Provision 2,986,938 - - 2,986,938 
Applied - (1 94,564) (1 25,044) (319,607) 
December 31,201 7 3,063,494 49,321 4,771,378 4,883,893 - -- 

27. Related Party Transactions 

Identity of Related Parties 

The Company has identified its executive directors, stockholders and key management 
personnel as its related parties. 

Due from Key Management Personnel 

In the normal course of business, the Company extends advances to its key management 
personnel. These advances are interest-free, not collateralized and have no definite 
repayment scheme. These are presented in the Statement of Financial Position as a 
component of "Other Receivablesn. 

The movement of this account is shown as follows: 

Note 2017 2016 
Beginning balance 634,578 1,430,486 
Additional advances 
Less: Payments (440,989) (1,074,886) 

7 1,851,447 634,578 
A. 



Executive Compensation 

The executive directors of the Company receive compensation for their services as such 
amounted as follows: 

201 7 2016 
Short-term benefits 4,6!50,120 1,455,200 
Post-employment benefits - - 
Other long-term benefits - 
Share-based payments - - 

1,650,120 1,455,200 

The directors also received fees amounting to P276,OOO and nil in 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 

The aggregate compensation and benefits paid to the managerial staff in 2017 and 2016 
amounted as follows: . 

2017 2016 
Short-term benefits 6,157,480 5,987,640 
Post-employment benefits 
Other long-term benefits 
Share-based payments - - 

6.1 67,480 5,987,640 

29. Supplementary Information Requlred Under Revenue Regulation Nos. 02-2014 and 45- 
2010 of the BIR 

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS, companies are required by the BIR to 
provide Cn the notes to financial statements certain supplementary information for the taxable 
year. The amounts relating to such supplementary information may not necessarily be the 
same with those amounts disclosed in the separate financial statements which were 
prepared in accordance with PFRS. The fallowing are the supplementary tax information 
required for the taxable years ended December 31,2017 and 2016. 

I. Based on RR 02-2014 

The schedule and information of taxable income and deductions taken for 2017 are as 
follows: 

Regular Rate 

Casualtv 248,354$48 
Bonds 
Fire 
Marine and engineering 
Reinsurance assumed 
Reinsurance ceded 
Decrease in unearned premiums 
Earned commissions 38,564,356 

'279,142,567 



b. Cost of Sales and Direct Expenses 

Regular Rate 
Salaries,wages and other benefits 12,650,330 
Commissions - bonds and fire 91,308,f 17 
Losses on fire, bonds and casualty 101,253,617 

205,212,664 
w- 

c. Non-operating and Taxable Other Income Not Subjected to Final Tax 

Regular Rate 
Interest on mortgage loan 4,430,274 
Miscellaneous income 2,713,456 

7,143,730 

d. Itemized Deductions 

Regular Rate 
Compensation and benefits 8,433,553 
Service fee 
Printing and office supplies 
Advertising and promotion 
Representation and entertainment 
Depreciation and amortization 
Professional fees 
Underwriting expense 
Transportation and travel 
Rent 
Communication and postage 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Donation and contribution 
Insurance 
Retirement benefits paid 
Taxes and licenses 
Agency expense 
Membership dues and contribution 
Directors' fee 
Miscellaneous expense 6,747,740 

39,486,452 



Based on RR 152010 

Value Added Tax 

Output Taxes 

The total amount of revenues with the corresponding output taxes in 2017 and 2016 are as 
follows: 

Revenues Output Tax 
201 7 333,345,883 40,001,506 
2016 324,328,000 38,919,960 

Input Tax 

The reconciliation of input tax as of 2017 and 2016 are shown below: 

201 7 2016 
Beginning Balance 
Add:Current year's domestic purchaseslpayments for. 

i. Goods for resale/manufacture or further processing 1,767,703 1,574,658 
ii. Goods other than resale or manufacture 
iii. Capital goods subject to amortization 
iv. Capital goods not subject to amortization 
v. Services lodged under cost of goods sold 
vi. Services lodged under other accounts 7,753,736 8,627,203 

Less: Claims for tax creditirefund and other adjustments 
Payments made (29,292,497 28,718,099 
Claimed against output tax (38,813,938) (38,QI 9,960) 

- - 

b. Percentage tax 

The total amount of sales with the corresponding percentage tax in 2017 and 2017 is as 
follows: 

Percentage 
Revenues Tax 

Withholding Taxes 

The following shows the total remittance of withholding taxes in 2017 and 2016: 

a) Tax on compensation and benefits 1,351,114 1,595,197 
b) Creditable withholding taxes 11,588,316 9,531,260 
c) Final withholding tax 

12,939,430 . 1 1,126,457 
. . 



Taxes and Licenses 

The following table shows the taxes and licenses paid. and accrued in 2017 and 2016 lodged 
under operating expenses: 

2017 2016 
Business permit 315,052 295,107 
Real property tax 115,971 115,971 
LTO registration 22,678 21,371 
Corporate community tax 12,500 12,427 
Renewal of certificate of authority 9,560 8,270 
BIR annual registration fee 2,000 2,000 
Others 40,380 32,796 

e. The Company is not involved in any preliminary investigation, litigation and/or 
prosecution in courts or bodies outside BIR. It has not been assessed any deficiency 
tax. 

- 
29. Cash Flow information 

Alon-cash investing and financing activities 

The Company has no acquisition of PPE through finance lease and conversion of debt to 
equity in 2017 and 2016. 

Reconciliation of cash and non-cash financial liabilities arising from financing activities 

The Company has no financial Iiabilties arising from financing activities in 2017 and 2016. 

30. External Audlt and Other Related ~a t te&  

Sta. Ana Rivera & Co. has not rendered any other services aside from the audit of the 
Company's annual financial statements or services that are normally provided in connection 
with statutory and regulatory filings in 2017 and 2016. 

The engagement of Sta. Ana Rivera & Co. as external auditors has been approved by the 
Board of Directors. 

There has been no change and disagreements with the independent auditors on accounting 
and financial disclosures. 



SRC Sta. Ana Rivera & Co. 
Certified Public Accountants SEC Accreditation No. 0218-FR-2 until January 19,2020 

BOAlPRC CeR of Reg. No. 0144 until December 31,2019 
IC Accreditation Na. F-2015-007-R Until April 23,201 8 
BSP Accredtted (up to 201 9 Audit Period) 
TIN 001 075-090-000 

REPORT OF INDEPENOENT AUDITQRS 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 

The Stockholders and Board of Directors 
VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION 
Unit 1403 Keppel Center, cor. Samar Loop & Cardinal Rosales Avenue 
Cebu Business Park, Cebu City 

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements 
of VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION as at and for the years ended 
December 31, 2017, and 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated April 3, 2018. Our 
audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. The tabular schedule of Philippines Financial Reporting Standards is the 
responsibility of the Company's management. This schedute is presented for purposes of 
complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (201 I), and is not part of the 
basic financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of basic financial statements, and in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, 
the information required to be 6et forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

STA. ANA RIVERA & CO. 
SEC Accreditation No. 0218-FR-2 until January 19, 2020 (Group B) 
BOAtPRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0144 until December 31,2018 
IC Accreditation No. F-2015-007-R until April 23, 201 8 
BSP Accredited (up to 201 9 Audit Period) 
TIN 00 1-075-090-000 

Partner 
CPA Reg, No. 54922 
TIN 1.05-072-747-000 
PTR No. 1451476, January 9,201 8, Cebu City 
SEC Accreditation No. 1410-A R-1 until September 5, 2020 (Group C) 
BSP Accredited (up to 201 9 Audit Period) 
BIR Accreditation No. 13-001250-002-2016 until January 26, 2019 

Cebu City, Philippines 
April 3,2018 



ANNEX A 

VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION 
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) 
Effective as of December 31,201 7 

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2017 

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of 
Financial Statements 
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative 
characteristics 

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary 

Adopted 

3 

3 

J 

3 

3 

J 

3 

J 

Philippine 

PFRS 1 

PFRS 2 

PFRS 3 

PFRS 4 

PFRS 5 

PFRS 6 

PFRS 7 

Financial Reporting Standards 

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards 

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an 
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity 
or Associate 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for 
First-time Adopters 

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from 
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time 
Adopters 

Amendments to PFRS 1 : Severe Hyperinflation and 
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters 

Amendments to PFRS 1 : Government Loans 

Share-based Payment 

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and 
Cancellations 

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- 
based Payment Transactions 

Amendment to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting 
Condition 

Business Combinations 

Insurance Contracts 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial 
Guarantee Contracts ----- 
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations 

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 

Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: 
Reclassification of Financial Assets 

Not 
Adopted 

Not 
Applicable 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

J 

3 

J 

J 

rl 

' f a  

J 



ANNEX A 

VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION 
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) 
Effective as of December 31,201 7 

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31,2017 

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of 
Financial Statements 
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative 
characteristics 

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary 

Adopted 

3 

J 

3 

J 

J 

J 

J., 

3 

Philippine 

PFRS 1 

PFRS 2 

PFRS 3 

PFRS 4 

PFRS 5 

PFRS 6 

PFRS 7 

I 

Financial Reporting Standards 

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards 

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an 
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity 
or Associate 

Amendments to PFRS I: Additional Exemptions for 
First-time Adopters 

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from 
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time 
Adopters 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and 
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans 

Share-based Payment 

Amendments to PFRS 2: bsting Conditions and 
Cancellations 

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cashsettled Share- 
based Payment Transactions 

Amendment to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting 
Condition 

Business Combinations 

Insurance Contracts 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial 
Guarantee Contracts 

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations 

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 

Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: 
Reclassification of Financial Assets 

Not 
Adopted 

Not 
Applicable 

J 

J 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

* ,. 
J 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2017 

Adopted 

J 

J 

J 

J 

PFRS 8 

PFRS 9 

PFRS 10 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: 
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date 
and Transition 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures 
about Financial Instruments 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of 
Financial Assets 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date 
of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures* 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Hedge Accounting 

Operating Segments 

Financial Instruments* 

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date 
of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures* 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Not 
Adopted 

* 

+ 
J 

--- 

PFRS 11 

PFRS 12 

PFRS 13 

PFRS 14 

PFRS 15 

PFRS 16 

Not 
Applicable 

J 

w 

J 

J 

J 

3 

r, 

r, 

J 

9 

r, 

J 

J 

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27: 
Consolidation for Investment Entities 

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or 
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture 

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: 
Application of the Consolidation Exception 

Joint Arrangements 

Amendments to PFRS 11 : Acquisitions of an Interest 
in a Joint Operations 

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: 
Application of the Consolidation Exception 

Fair Value Measurement 

Regulatory Deferral Accounts 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers* 
_ I _ _ - -  

Leases* 

v 

J 

*.. 

Philippine Accounting Standards 

PAS 1 
(Revised' 

Presentation of Financial Statements 

Amendment to PAS 1 : Capital Disclosures 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31,2017 

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable 
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on 
Liquidation 

Not 
Applicable 

v 

Adopted 

J 

J 

v 

J 

u' + 

v 

v 

J 

Not 
Adopted 

--- 

J 

PAS 2 

PAS 7 

PAS 8 

- 
PAS 10 

PAS 11 

PAS 12 

PAS 16 

PAS 17 

PAS 18 

PAS 19 
(Revised) 

PAS 20 

PAS 21 

PAS 23 
(Revised) 

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of 
Other Comprehensive Income - 
Amendments to PAS 1: Financial Statement 
Disclosures 

Inventories 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Amendments to PAS 7, Statements of Cash Flows 
(Disclosure Initiative) 

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors 

Events after the Reporting Period 

Construction Contracts 

Income Taxes 
- -- - - 

Amendment ~OPAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of 
Underlying Assets 

Amendment to PAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred 
Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method - 
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Amendment to PAS 16: Bearer Plants 

Leases 

Revenue 

Employee Benefits 

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: 
Employee Contributions 

Amendments to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional 
Market Issue 

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure 
of Government Assistance -- 
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 

Borrowing Costs 

J 

v 

v 

v 

v 

U' 

v 

v 

J 

J 

J 

J 

e 

J 

-- 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND Adopted 

J 

J 

J 

J 

J 

J 

J 

rl 

J 

J 

- - -  

3 

w4 

INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as 

PAS 24 
(Revised) 

PAS 28 

PAS 27 
(Amended) 

- ~. 
PAS 28 
(Amended) 

PAS 29 

PAS 32 

PAS 33 

PAS 34 

PAS 36 

PAS 37 

PAS 38 

of December 31,2017 

Related Party Disclosures 

Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management 
Personnel 

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit 
Plans 

Separate Financial Statements 

Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities 

Amendments to PAS 27: Use of Equity Method in 
Separate Financial Statements 

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
. 

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or 
Contributions of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture 

,Amendments of PFRS 10, PFRS 2 and PAS 28: 
Application of Consolidation Exception 

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation 

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS I: Puttable 
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on 
Liquidation 

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights 
Issues 

Amendment to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to 
Holders of Equity Instruments 

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets 
and Financial Liabilities 

Earnings per Share 

Interim Financial Reporting 

Amendments to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting 
and Segment Information for Total Assets and 
Liabilities 

Impairment of Assets 

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount 
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets 

Intangible Assets 

Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method - 
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated 
Amortization 

Not 
Adopted 

- 

Not 
Applicable 

J 

J 

J 

I* 

I* 

v 

J 

J 

J 

J 

rl 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS 

Adopted 

J 

J 

J 

J 

J 

J 

+ 

Effective as 

PAS 39 

PAS 40 

PAS 41 

Phlllppine 

of December 31,2017 

Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement 

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial 
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities 

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge 
Accounting of Forecast lntragroup Transactions 

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial 
Guarantee Contracts 

Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 7: 
Reclasslication of Financial Assets 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: 
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date 
and Transition 

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatwes 

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items 

Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives 

Amendment to PAS 39: Hedge Accounting* 

Investment Property 

Agriculture 

Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants 

Interpretations 

Not 
Adopted 

Not 
Applicable 

r/ 

J 

J 

J 

J 

J 

J 

e 

J 

v 

J 

J 

J *  

J 

J 

J 

IFRlC 1 

IFRlC 2 

IFRlC 4 

IFRlC 5 

IFRlC 6 

IFRlC 7 

IFRiC 9 

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration 
and Similar Liabilities 

Members' Share in Co-operatie Entitles and Similar 
Instruments 

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a 
Lease 

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, 
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific 
Market -Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives 



Wot yef effective as of December 31, 201 7. Not early adopted. 

Not 
Adopted 

Adopted 

J 

J 

J 

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND Not 
Applicable 

3 

J 

rr 

rr 

3 

3 

e 

J 

*r 

J 

J 

J 

3 

J 

3 

rr 

J 

J *  

J 

INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as 

IFRlC 10 

IFRlC 11 

IFRlC 12 

IFRlC 13 

IFRlC 14 

IFRIC 15 

IFRlC 16 

IFRlC 17 

IFRlC 18 

IFRlC 19 

IFRlC 20 

IFRlC 21 

SIC-7 

SIC-10 

SIC-12 

SIC-I5 

SIC-25 

SIC-27 

SIC-29 

SIC31 

SIC32 

of December 31,2017 

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 

PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions 

Service Concession Arrangements 

Customer Loyalty Programmes 

PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 
Minimum Funding Requirements and their 
Interaction 

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, 
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate* 

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 

Transfers of Assets from Customers 

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 
Instruments 

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 
Surface Mine 

Levies 

Introduction of the Euro 

Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to 
Operating Activities 

Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities 

Amendment to SIC-12; Scope of SIC 12 

Operating Leases - Incentives 

Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an 
Entity or its Shareholders 

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving 
the Legal Form of a Lease 

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. 

Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising 
Services 

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

The Stockholders and Board of Directors 
VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE CORPORATION 
Unit 1403 Keppel Center, cor. Sarnar Loop & Cardinal Rosales Avenue 
Cebu Business Park, Cebu City 

We have examined the financial statements of VISAYAN SURETY AND INSURANCE 
CORPORATION as at and for the year ended December 31,2017 and 2016, on which we have 
rendered our report dated April 3, 2018. 

In compliance with SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the said company has 59 stockholders, each 
owning 100 shares or more. 
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